
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 1,  2015

AGENDA 

MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL 

MAYOR JODY L. MCLEOD COUNCILMAN ART HOLDER 
MAYOR PRO TEM MICHAEL GRANNIS COUNCILMAN R.S. “BUTCH” LAWTER, JR. 
COUNCILMAN BOB SATTERFIELD COUNCILMAN JASON THOMPSON 

TOWN STAFF 

STEVE BIGGS, TOWN MANAGER 
KIMBERLY A. MOFFETT, TOWN CLERK 

BRUCE THOMPSON II, TOWN ATTORNEY 

P. O. Box 879 - Clayton, North Carolina 27528 - Office (919) 553-5002 - Fax (919) 553-8919 

  Jody L. McLeod Bob Satterfield 
       MAYOR          R.S. “Butch” Lawter, Jr. 

Art Holder  
   Bruce Thompson Jason Thompson   
TOWN ATTORNEY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

     Steve Biggs Michael Grannis 
 TOWN MANAGER   MAYOR PRO TEM 

1



AGENDA 
THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CLAYTON TOWN COUNCIL 

 
MONDAY, JUNE 1, 2015    THE CLAYTON CENTER 
6:30 PM       COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 
 
2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

(Items on the consent agenda are considered routine in nature or have been thoroughly 
discussed at previous meetings.  Any member of the Council may request to have an item 
removed from the consent agenda for further discussion.) 
a. Draft Minutes – May 4,  2015  Regular Session 
b. Draft Minutes – May 18, 2015 Work Session 
c. Certificate of Sufficiency of Petition for Voluntary Annexation – 14-100-

01-ANX – East Village Office 
d. Resolution Awarding Bid for 2014 Clayton Streets Project 
e. Special Event – Grill Fest – July 11, 2015 
f. Resolution – Sole Sourcing of Nitrogen Process Equipment 
g. Warranty and Dedication Acceptance; 

• East Village Lift Station, Gravity Sewer & Force Main 
• Johnston Medical Hospital – Water/Sewer 

 
 POTENTIAL ACTION: Motion for Approval of Consent Agenda as 

Presented 
 

4. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
a. Introduction of Stephanie Ross – Downtown Development Coordinator  

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

a. Public Hearing to Receive Public Comment on the Proposed FY  ‘15-‘16 
Budget 

 
 POTENTIAL ACTION:   Receive Input and Refer for Action at June 15, 

2015 Meeting 
 
b. Public Hearing -  Rezoning – 2014-99 – Magnolia Point Rezoning – PD-

MU & R-10 to R-8 
 
 POTENTIAL ACTION:  Approval/Disapproval of Rezoning 
 
c. Public Hearing  - Text Amendment – Modification to Article 2 of the 

Unified Development Code  
 
 POTENTIAL ACTION:  Approval/Disapproval Text Amendment 

Page 1 of 235



 
 

6. OLD BUSINESS  
a. Downtown Parking 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution in Support of Land and Water Conservation Fund 
 
 POTENTIAL ACTION:  Place on June 15, 2015 Consent Agenda 
 
b. Resolution for Supplemental Bond Order Amendments 

 
POTENTIAL ACTION:  Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 
 

c. Resolution Providing for Issuance of Electric System Revenue Bond 
 

 POTENTIAL ACTION:  Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 
 

d. Voluntary Annexation – 14-100-01-ANX – East Village Office 
 
 POTENTIAL ACTION:  Set Public Hearing for June 15, 2015 
 
e. Direct Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Petition for Annexation – 15-

08-06-ANX RWAC – Ravens Ridge 
   
       POTENTIAL ACTION:  Place on June 15, 2015 Consent Agenda 
  
8. STAFF REPORTS 

a. Town Manager 
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Clerk  
d.   Other Staff 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment 
b. Council Comments 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM: 3a Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Minutes 

DESCRIPTION: Draft Minutes from May 4, 2015 

RELATED GOAL: Administrative 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 Approval Draft Minutes 

Page 3 of 235



Minutes 
Clayton Town Council 

May 4, 2015 
 

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Michael Grannis, Council Member Bob Satterfield, 
Council Member Jason Thompson and Council Member Art Holder 
 
Absent:  Mayor Jody McLeod 
 
Staff Present:  Steve Biggs, Town Manager; Charles Meeker, Town Attorney; 
David DeYoung, Planning Director; Stacy Beard, Public Information Officer; Tim 
Simpson, Public Works Director; Dale Medlin, Electric Systems Director; Robert 
McKie, Finance Director; Kimberly Moffett, Town Clerk and  Tommy Roy, 
Information Technology Specialist 
  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Boy Scout Troop 726 who are associated with St. Ann’s Church led the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor Pro Tem Michael Grannis offered the 
Invocation and called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.  – 

 
2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA 

Public Hearing Items 5c and 5d were moved to the end of the Public 
Hearings portion of the agenda to accommodate a scheduling conflict.   
 
Town Attorney requested the addition of  a Closed Session. 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Items on the consent agenda are considered routine in nature or have been thoroughly 
discussed at previous meetings.  Any member of the Council may request to have an item 
removed from the consent agenda for further discussion.) 
a. Draft Minutes –April 6, 2015 & April 20,2015  
b. Draft Minutes – April 6, 2015 Closed Session 
c. Preeclampsia Proclamation 
d. 2015 Peace Officers Day & Police Week Proclamation 
e. Ordinance Amending Code of Ordinances – SBI/DCI Criminal Record 

Checks 
f. Special Event – 2015 Harvest Festival 
g. Special Event – 2015 Clayton Shindig 
h. Warranty and Dedication Acceptance; 

• The Cleveland Draft House of Clayton 
 

ACTION:  Approval of Consent Agenda as presented 
 
Motion:   Council Member Thompson 
Second:   Council Member Holder 
Vote:   Unanimous 
 

 

Page 4 of 235



4. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
a. Presentation of Preeclampsia Proclamation  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis presented a Proclamation recognizing May 
2015 as Preeclampsia Awareness Month.   The proclamation was 
present to Molly Herring, who serves as the coordinator of “The 
Promise Walk for Preeclampsia”.       

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

a. Public Hearing - PDD 2014-127 – Steeplechase Planned Development – 
Rezoning to PD-MU 

 
 Mr. DeYoung, Planning Director stated a letter was received from the 

property owner and they have requested a two- month extension to 
work out additional details. 

 
 ACTION:   Tabled until July 20, 2015 
 
b. Public Hearing -  PSD 2014-128 - Steeplechase Planned Development – 

Preliminary Plat/Master Plan 
  
 Mr. DeYoung, Planning Director stated a letter was received from the 

property owner and they have requested a two-month extension to 
work out additional details. 

  
 ACTION:  Tabled until July 20, 2015 
 
c. Public Hearing - 14-126-01-RZ -  Proctor’s Place East Parking Lot – 510 

W. Main Street  between 444 W. Main Street and 510 W. Main Street – 
Proposed Rezoning from R-6 to B-2 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis opened the Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m.  
 
Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant is Calvary Chapel and property 
owners are Sherald and Diane Lee.  Property is located at 510 West 
Main Street between an apartment building at 444 West Main Street 
and a commercial building at 510 West Main Street.   
 
Applicant is requesting approval to rezone .75 acres.  Current zoning is 
Residential-6 (R-6) and request is to rezone to Business-2 (B-2).  
Existing use is vacant.  Request of B-2 zoning is compatible with this 
area.  Applicant has indicated that if approved, site would be 
developed as a parking lot for uses at the associated Proctor’s Place 
office complex.  The rezoning is consistent with the Strategic Growth 
Plan and while not consistent with the proposed land use map, the 
growth of downtown and existing uses and zoning surrounding the 
property make B-2 zoning an appropriate designation. 

Page 5 of 235



 
Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if there were any questions of staff.  
With there being none, Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if applicant 
wished to make any statements.   
 
Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant was not present; however, staff 
stated they felt comfortable moving forward.  Mr. DeYoung stated 
applicant was previously present at the Work Session. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked there were any one who wished to 
speak in opposition.  Hearing no opposition, the item was turned over 
to Council for deliberation. 
 
ACTION:  Approve Rezoning 14-126-01-RZ 
 
Motion:    Council Member Satterfield 
Second:  Council Member Holder 
Vote:    Unanimous 
 
ACTION: Approve Consistency and Reasonable Statement as 

presented 
 
Motion:    Council Member Lawter 
Second:   Council Member Thompson 
Vote:    Unanimous 
 

d. Public Hearing - 15-05-01-RZ - Horne Memorial Church – three parcels 
located on Church Street between Horne and Page –Proposed 
Rezoning from R-6 to O-I 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis opened the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m. 
 
Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant is True Line Surveying and property 
owners are Horne Memorial United Methodist Church.  Property is 
located near Horne, Page, and Church Streets, on the same block as 
Town Hall.   

 
Applicant is requesting approval to rezone three (3) parcels  (.0714 
acres) located on Church Street between Horne and Pages from 
Residential-6 (R-)  to Office-Institutional (O-I),  Existing use is Church, 
church daycare and church offices.  The site is located on the 
boundary between office, event-space, and public uses to the north 
and the historic, downtown single-family residential neighborhood to 
the south.  Further to the north is the business core of downtown.  The 
Church shares the block with Town Hall and are compatible uses to 

Page 6 of 235



share a block and serve as an appropriate step down in intensity 
between the bustle of the downtown business district to the north and 
the less intensive residential area to the south.  The rezoning is 
consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if there were any questions of staff.  
With there being none, Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if applicant 
wished to make any statements.   

 
Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant was not present; however, staff 
stated they felt comfortable moving forward.  Mr. DeYoung stated 
applicant was previously present at the Work Session.  He further 
stated there were multiple neighborhood meetings held. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked there were any one who wished to 
speak in opposition.  Hearing no opposition, the item was turned over 
to Council for deliberation. 
 
ACTION:  Approve Rezoning 15-05-01-RZ 
 
Motion:    Council Member Thompson 
Second:  Council Member Holder 
Vote:    Unanimous 
 
ACTION: Approve Consistency and Reasonable Statement as 

presented 
 
Motion:    Council Member Thompson 
Second:   Council Member Holder 
Vote:    Unanimous 

 
At this time, the applicant for Public Hearings regarding Riverwood Athletic Club 
– Ravens Ridge 8C Proposed Rezoning & Major Subdivision/Preliminary Plat had 
not yet arrived.  Town Manager suggested we proceed to additional agenda 
items until the applicant was in attendance. 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS  

a. FY 2014-2015 Audit Contract 
 
Mr. Robert McKie, Finance Director was present and provided a brief 
overview of the 2014-2015 Audit Contract.  He stated there were no 
changes from previous contract and further stated no deficiencies 
were noted.  
 

 ACTION:  Approval of Contract Execution 

Page 7 of 235



 
Motion:    Council Member Holder 
Second:   Council Member Satterfield 
Vote:    Unanimous 

 
b. Bid Tabulation and Resolution Awarding Sam’s Creek Phase II 

Construction Project 
 
Town Manager Biggs provided information to the Council and advised 
there was a slight delay in obtaining all permits.  He stated that the 
approval of the contract would be contingent upon all approvals and 
permits being in place. 
 
Mr. Tim Simpson, Public Works Director, presented the results of the 
bid process with regard to the construction project.  He stated the 
lowest bid came in from J.F. Wilkerson Contracting.  It was the 
recommendation of  the engineering firm of McKim&Creed  to award 
the project to J.K. Wilkerson Contracting.  Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
asked if there were any concerns regarding this company.  Mr. 
Simpson stated there were none and that in fact this company had 
completed work for the Town approximately ten years ago and did a 
very good job.    

 
 ACTION:  Approval of Resolution Awarding Bid 
 
 Motion:  Council Member Holder 
 Second:  Council Member Thompson 
 Vote:  Unanimous 
 

At this time the applicant for Public Hearings regarding 15-08-02-RZ and 15-08-
01-SUB arrived and Council continued to hold these two Public Hearings. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - Continued 

 
e. Public Hearing  - 15-08-02-RZ -  Riverwood Athletic Club – Ravens 

Ridge 8C – Proposed Rezoning from R-E to R-8 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Grannis opened the Public Hearing at 7:01 p.m.  
 
 Mr. DeYoung stated the applicant is DC Adams Engineering Inc. and 

property owners are FSC IV LLC.  The property includes 8.2 acres 
adjacent to the original Raven’s Ridge Phase 8C, formerly known as 
the House Tract, east of and adjacent to the Neuse River, south of and 
adjacent to the existing Riverwood Athletic Club, and north of Covered 
Bridge Road.  

 

Page 8 of 235



 Applicant is requesting approval to rezone the property from 
Residential – Estate (R-E) to Residential-8 (R-8).   The zoning  is 
contingent upon an annexation of this property into the Town, which 
represents the continued expansion of the Riverwood Athletic Club 
subdivision.  A master plan modification, to expand the boundaries of 
RWAC to include the subject property, and subdivision plate, to modify 
the existing Phase 8C and expand it to include the subject property, are 
also occurring concurrently with the annexation and rezoning. 

 
 The property is compatible with surrounding land uses.  The rezoning 

is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan. 
  
 Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if there were any questions of staff.  

With there being none, Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if applicant 
wished to make any statements.   

 
 Mr. Fred Smith stated he had no statements but was present for any 

questions the Council may have of him. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked there were any one who wished to 

speak in opposition.  Hearing no opposition, the item was turned over 
to Council for deliberation. 

 
 ACTION:  Approve Rezoning 15-08-02-RZ 
 
 Motion:    Council Member Lawter 
 Second:  Council Member Holder 
 Vote:    Unanimous 
 
 ACTION:  Approve Consistency and Reasonable Statement as  

   presented 
 
 Motion:    Council Member Thompson 
 Second:   Council Member Holder 
 Vote:    Unanimous   
 
 
f. Public Hearing - 15-08-01-SUB -  Riverwood Athletic Club – Ravens 

Ridge 8C – Major Subdivision/Preliminary Plat 
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Grannis opened the Public Hearing at 7:07 p.m.  
 
 Mayor Pro Tem stated that anyone wishing to offer testimony would 

need to step forward and have the Town Clerk administer the oath.  

Page 9 of 235



Oath administered to David DeYoung, Fred Smith, Thad Avent and 
Donnie Adams.  

The project includes the original Raven’s Ridge Phase 8C plus an 
additional 8.2 acres of  land, formerly known as the House Tract, east 
of and adjacent to the Neuse River, south of and adjacent to the 
existing Riverwood Athletic Club, and north of Covered Bridge Road. 

The applicant is DC Adams and the property owner is FSC IV LLC (Fred 
Smith Company).  The applicant is requesting prelimiarly subdivision 
plat approval for the major subdivision of Raven’s Ridge 8C in the 
Riverwood Atheltic Club (RWAC) Planned Development to allow 33 
single family detached residential units, within Town Limits.  The 
request includes a modification to the overall RWAC boundaries to 
include an additional 8.2 acres (pending annexation).   

The request is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan,  If the Master 
Plan amendment is approved as proposed, the request will be 
consistent with the Master Plan.  The proposed development is 
consistent with the Unified Development Code.  It is consistent with the 
density and patterns of the RWAC Planned Development and all 
recreation and open space requirements have been met.  Resource 
conservation areas shall be preserved. 

The applicant has addressed the Findings of Fact with all four criteria 
being met.  Neighborhood meeting was held on March 12, 2015 with no 
issues.   

Staff is recommending approval with the following conditions: 

• Following Board approvals, three copies of the final Preliminary
Subdivision Plan meeting the requirements of the Conditions of
Approval shall be submitted to Planning Department for final
approval.

• The final plat and subsequent development of the site shall be
consistent with the specifications of the approved Preliminary
Subdivision Plan. Modifications may require additional approvals
pursuant to Section 155.706 of the Unified Development Code.

• The proposed 10’ wide multi-use/greenway will be constructed
and tied into the existing Neuse River greenway prior to the
Certificate of Occupancy being issued for the first dwelling unit.

• All development fees shall be paid prior to final plat recordation,
except that Capacity fees shall be paid prior to issuance of
building permits.

Page 10 of 235



• Resource Conservation Areas (RCAs) as defined by Section
155.500 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) shall be
identified on the final plats as being permanently set aside, and
shall be protected in perpetuity by a binding legal instrument
recorded with the deed which includes clear restriction on the
use of the resource conservation area, as described in Section
155.500(F) of the UDC.

• RCAs shall be protected with orange fencing during the
construction of adjacent parcels. Fencing shall be installed prior
to any clearing and/or grading

• An updated wastewater allocation request must be approved by
the Town Manager.

Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if there were any questions of staff.  
With there being none, Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if applicant 
wished to make any statements.   

Mr. Fred Smith stated he had no statements but was present for any 
questions the Council may have of him. 

Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked there were any one who wished to 
speak in opposition.  Hearing no opposition, the item was turned over 
to Council for deliberation. 

ACTION: Approval of 15-08-01-SUB 

Motion:  Council Member Thompson 
Second:  Council Member Holder 
Vote:  Unanimous 

7. NEW BUSINESS

a. Budget Amendment

Mr. McKie presented the budget amendment and line items.

ACTION:   Place on May 18, 2015 Consent Agenda

8. STAFF REPORTS
a. Town Manager

• Downtown Parking

Mr. Biggs re-addressed issue regarding parking /overnight parking issues 
and whether our current ordinance addresses these issues.  Mr. Biggs 
stated our current ordinance does not address day time / long term 

Page 11 of 235



parking issues.  Also discussed was the issue of  parking in loading zones.  
Mr. Biggs stated there is an ordinance in place to address these issues.  It 
was recommended changing current signage.  At this time there is no 
necessity for Council action.  Mayor Pro Tem Grannis questioned if there if 
the asphalt in the loading zone was marked.  Mr. Biggs stated he did not 
believe there was he believe that information is contained on the signage 
in the area(s).  Mr. Biggs further stated that our current ordiance indicates 
to refer to signage so we may have to revisit or change our current 
signage to indicate short term usage 

Mr. Biggs stated he had received a letter from the attorney for the 
previous owner of the old Red & White Building located at 110 w. Front 
Street.  The letter was inquiring as to whether the Town would be 
interested in ownership of the property in exchange for the current 
invoice of $38,000, which was the cost for demolition of said property.  It 
was agreed that we would defer the invoice for 90 days to allow time for a 
private buyer who may have an interest in purchasing the property.  After 
that time if there is no private interest in the property the town could then 
reconsider the offer.  –  
b. Town Attorney
c. Town Clerk
d. Other Staff

9. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment
b. Council Comments

Council Member Lawter asked for an update regarding paving issues
and Riverwood and Lionsgate.  Mr. Biggs stated that Deer Valley is
next on the schedule for paving.  He further stated that he has shared
his concerns regarding paving issues and that this issue is being
managed on a weekly basis.  He further stated the estimated
completion date is May 2016, which does conform to the original
schedule.

10. CLOSED SESSION

At 7:22 p.m. Attorney Charles Meeker requested a Closed Session.

ACTION: Closed Session under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) to 
consult with Town Attorney regarding possible  
litigation.   

Motion:  Council Member Holder 
Second:  Council Member Thompson 
Vote: Unanimous 

Page 12 of 235



At 7:46 p.m. Town Council returned from Closed Session with the 
following actions being taken. 

ACTION: Authorize Resolution Condemnation to Acquire Certain 
Property of Allen Lester Mims Jr. and Emily Lee Hunt 
Mims 

Motion: Council Member Holder 
Second: Council Member Lawter 
Vote: Unanimous 

ACTION: Authorize Resolution Condemnation to Acquire Certain 
Property of Sean R. Garvey and Candice L. Garvey 

 Motion: Council Member Holder 
     Second: Council Member Satterfield 

 Vote: Unanimous 

ACTION: Authorize Resolution Condemnation to Acquire Certain 
Property of The Estate of H. Ronald Hocutt, Jr. 

Motion: Council Member Holder 
      Second: Council Member Thompson 
      Vote: Unanimous 

11. ADJOURNMENT
With there being nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 7:49 p.m.

ACTION: Adjournment 

Motion: Council Member Thompson 
Second: Council Member Holder 
Vote: Unanimous 

Duly adopted this the 1st day of June, 2015 while in regular session. 

____________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk  

Page 13 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 3b     Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Minutes 

DESCRIPTION: Draft Minutes from May 18, 2015 Work Session  

RELATED GOAL: Administrative 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

 

Date:     Action:    Info. Provided: 

6-1-15    Approval    Draft Minutes 

Page 14 of 235



Town Council Meeting 
Town of Clayton 

May 18, 2015 
6:30 PM 

Present:  Mayor Jody McLeod, Mayor Pro Tem Michael Grannis, Council Member Bob 
Satterfield, Council Member Art Holder, Council Member Butch Lawter 

Absent: Council Member Jason Thompson 

Staff Present:  Steve Biggs, Town Manager; Nancy Medlin, Deputy Town Manager; 
Katherine Ross, Town Attorney; David DeYoung, Planning Director; Stacy Beard, Public 
Information Officer; Tommy Roy, IT Technician; Tim Simpson, Public Works/ Utilities 
Director; Bruce Naegelen, Downtown Development Coordinator; Dale Medlin, Electric 
Systems Director;  Robert  McKie, Finance Director;  James Warren, Waste Water 
Treatment  Superintendent and Christy Anastasi, Deputy Town Clerk 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor McLeod called the meeting to order at 6:35 PM and led everyone in the
Pledge of Allegiance as well as offering the Invocation.

2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA
Order of items listed under Introductions and Special Presentations was
changed. The North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency-Power Sales
Agreement was moved to be heard before the brief adjournment for Town
Council to attend “A Soldier’s Walk Home” Ceremony being held at Town Square.

Action:  Suspend rules in order to take action on items other than those on the
Consent Agenda.

Motion: Council Member Lawter 
Second: Mayor Pro Tem Grannis
Vote: Unanimous 

3. CONSENT AGENDA
(Items on the consent agenda are considered routine in nature or have been thoroughly discussed 
at previous meetings.  Any member of the Council may request to have an item removed from the 
consent agenda for further discussion.) 
a. Budget Amendment Ordinance

Action: Approval of Consent Agenda as Presented 

Motion: Council Member Satterfield 
Second: Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
Vote: Unanimous 

4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
a. Warranty and Dedication Acceptances:

Page 15 of 235



• East Village Lift Station, Gravity Sewer & Force Main
• Johnston Medical Hospital – Water/Sewer

Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

b. Direct Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Petition for Voluntary Annexation –
14-100-01-ANX

Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

c. Set Public Hearing to Receive Public Comment on Proposed FY 15-16   Budget

Action:  Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 

5. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION
a. Resolution Application to Local Government Commission for Approval of

Electric System Revenue Bonds

Mr. McKie requested that Council consider taking action on the Electric
System Revenue Bonds. These bonds are necessary to make improvements to
the Town’s electric system.

Mayor Pro Tem Grannis introduced the resolution, as follows:
Resolution providing for application to the local government commission for
approval of electric system revenue bonds; requesting local government
commission approval of such electric system revenue bonds; and certain
related matters and findings.

Action: Approval of Resolution 

Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
Second: Council Member Satterfield 
Vote: Unanimous 

6. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
a. North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency – Power Sales Agreement

Former Council Member Bob Ahlert stated that in the past eighteen months or
so this issue has been in negotiations with Duke/ Progress Energy as well as
many other federal, state, local agencies and the general assembly with
regard to Power Sales Agreement. Mr. Ahlert introduced Mr. Tim Tunis, Chief
Financial Officer with Electricities.  Mr. Tunis stated the adoption of this
ordinance would approve the sale of the North Carolina Eastern Municipal
Power Agency (NCEMPA) generating assets to Duke Energy Progress (DEP)
and approves the execution of three contracts between NCEMPA and Clayton.
By selling our power generation assets and purchasing wholesale power from
DEP this would allow us to provide an opportunity to lower rates, become

Page 16 of 235



more cost competitive, provide long-term economic benefits, increase 
stability/reduce risk and adapt/respond to changing market conditions.  It 
would immediately reduce annual debt payments by 69% resulting in an 
immediate 10% reduction in wholesale power cost. The asset purchase 
agreement states that DEP will pay $1.2 billion to acquire all of the rights, title 
and interest in NCEMPA’s generation assets on a debit free basis. Transfer (to 
DEP) NCEMPA’s decommissioning Trust funded at the required Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission minimum level and $26M of NCEMPA’s internal 
reserve funds earmarked for decommissioning costs. DEP will assume all 
liabilities, including any plant and environmental liabilities incurred after 
closing that are related to or result from a pre-closing event or condition. 
Transfer (to DEP) NCEMPA’s ownership interests in nuclear fuel and spare 
parts in inventory. Cap NCEMPA’s pension fund contributions between 
execution of asset purchase agreement and closing at 100% funded. NCEMPA 
to retain ownership share of settlement of pre-closing damages related to 
spent fuel storage costs (DOE). DEP to reimburse NCEMPA for capital 
additions incurred after 1/1/15 (up to $78M for 2015 and $55M for 2016). The 
contract duration terminates on December 31, 2043 with early termination 
option on December 31, 2035. Target date for closing of transaction and new 
wholesale rate is July 1, 2015.  Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked for clarification 
regarding the reason for the cost increase in the second ten year segment.  
Mr. Tunis replied this increase is due to forecasting for inflation for fuel cost.   

Action:  Approval of Ordinance 

Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
Second: Council Member Holder 
Vote: Unanimous 

Mayor Pro Tem Grannis thanked Mr. Ahlert for his years of service and 
his assistance in representing Clayton in this transaction.  A copy of all 
agreements are hereby incorporated and made part of the minutes.

A brief recess was taken at 7:14 PM for Town Council to attend “A Soldier’s 
Walk Home” Ceremony held at Town Square. 

Mayor McLeod called the meeting back to order at 7:45 PM 

Absent:  Council Member Satterfield 

b. US 70/70 and US 70/42 Hwy 42 & Hwy US 70 Business

Mr. DeYoung stated that the Town has hired URS (formerly United Research
Services) to analyze a few intersections in Town.  URS was asked to look into
the future to see what our infrastructure needs will be. Mr. DeYoung then
introduced Ms. Cindy Camacho a Planner with URS, who provided an overview
of the Town of Clayton Infrastructure Analysis.  Ms. Camacho stated the goal
of this study was to evaluate the adequacy of existing infrastructure in three

Page 17 of 235



areas transportation, sanitary sewer and the water system. Ms. Camacho then 
introduced Mr. Ed Edens, who provided the traffic analysis.  Mr. Edens stated 
an infrastructure traffic analysis study was determined on two interchanges. 
One US 70 Business Hwy West and US 70 Hwy W Scenic. The second is NC 
Hwy 42 and Scenic 70 Bypass. Three elements were analyzed: Land Use, 
Traffic Operations and Utilities. Findings for NC Hwy 42 & US Scenic 70 
Bypass are large amounts of land available for development. Area of growth 
would increase from 3,698 to 14,537 residents in 2040. Increase in commercial 
and medical office space, notably the Spring Branch Park development. 
Significant growth expected at N. Tech Drive and Gordon Road. Findings for 
US 70 Bus Hwy W & US 70 Hwy W (Scenic) show an increase of the population 
from 3,400 to over 8,000 in the year 2040. A large increase in industrial 
employment and an increase in all housing types.  Future signalization is 
warranted for six intersections listed as follows: NC42 at Amelia Church Road, 
NC 42 at Johnston Medical Center, NC 42 at US 70 WB ramps, NC 42 at 70 EB 
ramps, NC 42 at Government Road and NC 42 at Springbrook Avenue. 
Findings also, recommend road widening improvements between I-40 and 
Amelia Church Road.  Findings for US 70 Bus Hwy W & US 70 Hwy W (Scenic) 
based on projected 2040 peak hour AM and PM traffic volumes; an additional 
storage lane is required at US 70 Business and Powhatan Road. Additional 
findings include a collector facility at N. Tech Drive and Gordon Road. 
Significant growth was also forecast at Cole Road.  Mr. Randy Folk addressed 
the findings on the water and wastewater at these two locations. Mr. Folk 
stated at the US 70 Bus Hwy W & US 70 Hwy W (Scenic) location the existing 
12-inch force main appears to be at capacity. Additional downstream 
infrastructure is undersized. Recommend continued discussions with the 
county to access the existing underutilized 8-inch Smith Creek force main. At 
the location of NC Hwy 42 W & US Scenic 70 Bypass the existing 8-inch gravity 
sewer, estimated to be approximately 1 MGD would be inadequate. The 
estimated 3 MGD future peak flow would be needed. The future probable costs 
of NC Hwy 42 W & US Scenic 70 Bypass would be Transportation $12.3 million, 
Sanitary Sewer $15-25 million and Water System $5-7 million. For the US 70 
Bus Hwy W & US 70 Hwy W (Scenic) the future probable costs would be 
Transportation $10 million, Sanitary Sewer $17-20 million and Water System 
$4-6million. It was stated that most of the cost for the improvements would be 
paid by developers and not the Town. Council Member Lawter asked for 
clarification on 70/70 Business traffic priorities between Gordon Road being a 
higher priority than Powtan Road. It is based on the future type of development 
that will be going in the Gordon Road area and getting the proper 
infrastructure in place for future impact and development due process. 
However, planning down the road these priorities may shift depending on the 
different developers. There was a brief discussion and Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
asked how much of this area is currently in our ETJ.  Mr. DeYoung stated most 
of these areas are within the Town’s ETJ.  Mayor Pro Tem  Grannis also asked 
in terms of cost is that based on today.  This report is based on today’s cost 
and was not forecast for the future.  Discussion between Council Members 
continued and Council Members agreed the numbers look good and they are 
pleased with the report. 

Page 18 of 235



c. 2015 National Main Street Program Accreditation Certificate

Mr. Naegelen stated this is the 8th consecutive year for receiving the National
Main Street Program. The Town of Clayton has been accredited by meeting the
Commercial district revitalization performance standards in 2014. Over the
past eight years, more than $10, 000,000 has been invested privately in
downtown Clayton.  A total of 193 jobs have been created with the addition of
60 new businesses and 10 expansions.

7. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR THE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
a. Rezoning – 2014-99 Magnolia Point Rezoning -  PD-MU & R-10 to R-8

Mr. DeYoung stated the location of this property is Shotwell Road, in between
US 70 Bus Hwy W and Amelia Church Road. This is a vacant parcel located
across Shotwell Road from Lion’s Spring. A neighborhood meeting was held
on August 26, 2014 with no issues. This rezoning is consistent with the
Strategic Growth Plan. Planning Board recommended approval of the
rezoning. Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning. Mr. DeYoung stated
the overall planned development requirements were satisfied by using class c
buffers and with the rezoning the proposed development is compatible with
the surrounding uses.

Action: Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 

b. Text Amendment – Modification to Article 2 of the Unified Development Code

Mr. DeYoung stated there was a need for the addition of a zoning category to
our current list of zoning districts.   This area would be called one of the
following Government Use, Public Services, or Public Facilities.  Many types of
public businesses do not always fit into one zoning category.   The purpose of
this zoning category would allow for flexibility as we plan for future and
current public facilities. For the public facilities category there would be no
minimum or maximums on lot sizes. The lot sizes could be either very large to
very small.

Action: Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 

c. Award of Bid for the 2014 Clayton Streets Project

Mr. Simpson stated the bid opening for the 2014 Streets project was held on 
April 7, 2015 at 2:00pm in the Clayton Operations Center. A total of five (5) bids 
were submitted.  T A Loving Company of Goldsboro was the lowest bidder with 
a unit price of $1,448,196.25. There is a provision for a decrease in pricing. 
Mayor McLeod stated he was happy to see the reduction in price due to the 
provision. Mayor McLeod also stated that all of these improvements are

Page 19 of 235



needed. Council Member Lawter asked that a map be provided of the areas to 
be impacted. Council Member Lawter asked if the areas could be placed on a 
one page map.  He stated this map could be provided to citizens who inquire. 
Mayor McLeod asked about a timeline for the project. Mr. Simpson stated a six 
to seven month time frame is to be expected.  Mayor McLeod stated he would 
ask that citizens in these areas are made aware of the project as well as a time 
frame.  

Action: Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda with the updated bid 
amount 

d. Special Event – Grill Fest – Town Square - July 11, 2015

Mr. Naegelen presented the following event to Council for approval.  Grill Fest
is being held on July 11, 2015 between the hours of 10:30am-4:00pm at Town
Square. It is anticipated that attendance should be about 300 people. There
will be a band with one stage and a corn hole tournament will be held.
Request to close Town Square Parking Lot for this event.  Special Events
Committee recommends approval.  Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked if any
security was required for this event. Mr. Naegelen stated there was not.
Mayor Pro Tem Grannis asked why not? Mr. Naegelen stated typically security
is not provided when alcohol is not being served.

Action: Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

e. Sole Sourcing of Nitrogen Process Equipment

Mr. James Warren provided information and made a request for a resolution
be considered for equipment for the Little Creek Water Reclamation Facility.
Recommended is sole source procurement of an instrumentation and control
system package by Ovivo.

Action: Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

8. ITEMS CONTINGENT FOR THE REGULAR MEETING

9. OLD BUSINESS

10. STAFF REPORTS
a. Town Manager
b. Town Attorney
c. Town Clerk
d. Other Staff

11. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment
b. Council Comment

Page 20 of 235



Mayor Pro Tem Grannis would like to do some form of a memorial for veterans. 
Council would like staff to bring back a proposal to council with respect to a 
way or different ways of recognizing the veterans in Clayton.  It has been 
discussed in the past about a memorial park this is just an idea.  Mayor 
McLeod said it could even be a spot on the quarterly agenda to have the 
opportunity to recognize the veterans.  Council Member Lawter is in 
agreement that there needs to be a way to recognize veterans.  Council 
Member Lawter stated that this information could be suggested to the Art 
Advisory board for suggestions.  Council Member Holder is in agreement as 
well.  Council Member Holder stated that we should never forget what these 
veterans have done. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned. 
                 
             Action:  Adjourn meeting at 8:42 PM. 
 

Motion:  Mayor Pro Tem Grannis 
            Second:  Council Member Holder 
            Vote:   Unanimous 
 
       
Duly adopted this 1st day of June 2015 while in regular session. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 21 of 235



Page 22 of 235



Page 23 of 235



Page 24 of 235



Page 25 of 235



Page 26 of 235



Page 27 of 235



Page 28 of 235



Page 29 of 235



Page 30 of 235



Page 31 of 235



Page 32 of 235



Page 33 of 235



Page 34 of 235



Page 35 of 235



Page 36 of 235



Page 37 of 235



Page 38 of 235



Page 39 of 235



Page 40 of 235



Page 41 of 235



Page 42 of 235



Page 43 of 235



Page 44 of 235



Page 45 of 235



Page 46 of 235



Page 47 of 235



Page 48 of 235



Page 49 of 235



Page 50 of 235



Page 51 of 235



Page 52 of 235



Page 53 of 235



Page 54 of 235



Page 55 of 235



Page 56 of 235



Page 57 of 235



Page 58 of 235



Page 59 of 235



Page 60 of 235



Page 61 of 235



Page 62 of 235



Page 63 of 235



Page 64 of 235



Page 65 of 235



Page 66 of 235



Page 67 of 235



Page 68 of 235



Page 69 of 235



Page 70 of 235



Page 71 of 235



Page 72 of 235



Page 73 of 235



Page 74 of 235



Page 75 of 235



Page 76 of 235



Page 77 of 235



Page 78 of 235



Page 79 of 235



Page 80 of 235



Page 81 of 235



Page 82 of 235



Page 83 of 235



Page 84 of 235



Page 85 of 235



Page 86 of 235



Page 87 of 235



Page 88 of 235



Page 89 of 235



Page 90 of 235



Page 91 of 235



Page 92 of 235



Page 93 of 235



Page 94 of 235



Page 95 of 235



Page 96 of 235



Page 97 of 235



Page 98 of 235



Page 99 of 235



Page 100 of 235



Page 101 of 235



Page 102 of 235



Page 103 of 235



Page 104 of 235



Page 105 of 235



Page 106 of 235



Page 107 of 235



Page 108 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 3c    Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 
 
TITLE: Voluntary Annexation – 14-100-01-ANX – East Village Office 
 
DESCRIPTION: Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of above petition for 

voluntary annexation 14-100-01-ANX. 
  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Place on June 1, 2015   Application   
    Consent Agenda   Annexation Map 
         Resolution 
             
 
6-1-15   Approval    Application 
         Annexation Map 
         Certificate of Sufficiency 
         
 
 
 

Page 109 of 235



ANNEXATION PETITION 14-100-01-ANX 
EAST VILLAGE OFFICE 
0.0859 ACRES 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 
 
 
 
 
To the Town Council of the Town of Clayton, North Carolina: 
 
 I, Kimberly A. Moffett, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have 
investigated the petition attached hereto and have found as a fact that 
said petition is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area 
described therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-58.1. 
 
 In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal 
of the Town of Clayton, this 1st day of June, 2015. 
 
 
 
 

     ___________________________________ 
     Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 

Town Clerk 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 110 of 235



Page 111 of 235



Page 112 of 235



Page 113 of 235



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): East Village Investments LLC
Property Owner(s): East Village Investments LLC
Parcel Number(s) Portion of 05H03008L
File Number(s): 14-100-01-Anx

Legend

!

!

!

!

Clayton Town Limits

Clayton ETJ

Parcels

Area to be Annexed

April 20, 2015

1 inch = 100 feet

OLD NC 42 HWY E

NC 42
 HWY E

WALDEN WAY

E FRONT ST

R-10 Zoning

R-8 Zoning

Area to be Annexed
0.09 Acres

O-I Zoning

PD-R Zoning

R-E Zoning

B-3 Zoning

R-E Zoning

WA
LD

EN
 W

AY
OLD NC 42 HWY E

I-2 Zoning

Page 114 of 235



Page 115 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 3d Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Award of Bid for the 2014 Clayton Streets Projects 

DESCRIPTION: This item was presented at the May 18, 2015 Town Council 
meeting and an updated bid sheet is attached. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Set Public Hearing Bid Tabulations  
for June 1, 2015 Recommendation of 

Award Letter 

6-1-15 Consent Updated Bid Sheet 

Page 116 of 235



Page 117 of 235



Page 118 of 235



Page 119 of 235



Page 120 of 235



Page 121 of 235



Page 122 of 235



Page 123 of 235



Resolution # 2015-22 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION OF AWARD OF BID 

FOR 2014 CLAYTON STREETS PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton publicly advertised for bids to be received for 
2014 Clayton Streets Project on April 7, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton exhibited good faith efforts to notify minority 
and women owned businesses of said project and encouraged bidding; and 

WHEREAS, the BIDS were publicly opened on the stated date; and 

WHEREAS, the low bidder is T.A. Loving Company, for the bid amount of 
$1,234,595.00; and 

WHEREAS, T.A. Loving Company, is properly licensed and experienced in the 
type of construction involved in this project; and 

WHEREAS, all received bids were reviewed by Sanderson Engineering, Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, based on review of all received bids it is the recommendation that 
award of the construction contract be granted to T.A. Loving Company; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton intends to construct said project in accordance 
With the approved plans and specifications,  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CLAYTON TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

The Town of Clayton awards the construction of the 2014 Clayton Streets 
Project to 
T.A. Loving Company, in the amount of $1,234,595.00. 

Duly adopted this the 1st of June, 2015, while in regular session. 

_________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 124 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 3e Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Special Event – 2015-09 –Grill Fest 

DESCRIPTION: This item was presented at the May 18, 2015 Town Council 
Work Session and is scheduled to be held July 11, 2015. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Place on June 1, 2015 Special Event Report 
Consent Agenda 

6-1-15 Consent Special Event Report 

Page 125 of 235



Planning Staff Contact:  Bruce Naegelen: 919-280-1278 
EVENT INFORMATION:  

Event Name: Grill Fest File Number:   2015-09 

Event Description: Cornhole tournament, live Christian music/spoke word performances. 

Event Date(s): 7/11/15 Event Time(s): 10:30 am – 4:00 pm 

Event Location:   Town Square 

Event Coordinator: Hunter Crocker Contact Number: 919-201-0019 

Contact Email: Grilling4god@gmail.com 

Attendees (Per Day): 300 

TOWN SERVICES REQUESTED: 
Department / 

Division 
Requested Services Date/Time Primary 

Contact 
Contact 
Phone # 

Electric 
Department 

Use of power panels at Town Square 
on Fayetteville & O’Neil Street  

7/11/15 Dale Medlin 359-1292 

Public Works - 5 Trash roll-out carts & 4 
Recycled  

- Town Square Parking Lot 
closure barricades 

Drop-off: 
7/10/15 & 
Pick-up: 
7/13/15 at 
Town 
Square 

Steve Blasko 359-1287 

Town Council Authorize closure of Town Square 
Parking Lot 

Saturday, 
7/11/15 
from 6:00 
am to 6:00 
pm 

STAFF USE: 
SEC 
Approval 

  Approved 
Date:  4/30/15   No Council Action needed   Denied 

Council 
Action 

Presentation Date: 5/18/15   Approved    Denied 
Consent Agenda  Date: 6/1/15 Date:  

Pending 
Actions 

  DOT Road Closure Approval 

  Issue Permit    Date:  
  ABC Permit Submittal 
  Other 

(SEC – Special Event Committee) 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

SPECIAL EVENT ACTION ITEM REPORT 

Page 126 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 3f Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Sole Source Purchase 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. James Warren provided information on the 
recommendation of the sole sourcing of the nitrogen process 
equipment for the Wastewater Treatment Plant at the May 18, 
2015 Town Council meeting.  Resolution authorizing approval 
is attached. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Place on June 1, 2015 Letter 
Consent Agenda  

6-1-15 Consent Resolution 

Page 127 of 235



Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 1 of 13 

P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

PROPOSAL 
for 

CLAYTON, NC WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

submitted to 
HAZEN AND SAWYER 

from 
OVIVO USA, LLC 

4246 RIVERBOAT ROAD 
SUITE 300 

SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84123 

         Bid Date: January 16, 2015 
      Ovivo Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226

Page 128 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 2 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

 
    
   DATE:  January 16, 2015 
   
      TO:    Clayton, NC WWTP 
 
    BID DATE:  January 16, 2015 
 
 
Ovivo USA, LLC  is pleased to submit a proposal for the following equipment (the “Products”) on 
the project  indicated above (the “Project”).   This proposal, either  in  its original form or  in  its “as 
sold”  format, constitutes Ovivo’s contractual offer of goods and services  in connection with  the 
Project.   Please contact Ovivo’s sales representative  in your area for any questions or comments 
you may have in connection with this proposal.  The address is: 
 
 
          EW2 Environmental Inc. 
          7245 Pineville‐Mathews Road 
          Suite 100 
          Charlotte, NC 28226 
           
  Attention:   Bryan Wheeler 
    
          Telephone:    704‐542‐2444 
          Facsimile:      704‐542‐7003         
          Email:     bwheeler@ew2.net 
 
 
BID PRICING 
   
  SPECIFICATION   ESTIMATED  
  ITEM  SECTION  EQUIPMENT  SHIP DATE*  PRICE 
 
  I  N/A  Carrousel® System  *  $240,295.00

Page 129 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 3 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

DELIVERY 
 
*  Ovivo will submit drawings for approval within eight (8) weeks after Purchaser’s receipt of 

Ovivo’s written acknowledgement of an approved purchase order.   Ovivo  intends to ship 
all Products twenty‐eight  (28) weeks after receipt of approved drawings  from Purchaser.  
However,  the  dates  of  drawing  submission  and  shipment  of  the  Products  represents 
Ovivo's  best  estimate,  but  is  not  guaranteed,  and  Ovivo  shall  not  be  liable  for  any 
damages due  to  late delivery. The Products shall be delivered  to  the delivery point or 
points  in accordance with the delivery terms stated  in this proposal.   If such delivery  is 
prevented  or  postponed  by  reason  of  Force Majeure,  as  defined  in Ovivo’s  standard 
terms and conditions of sale, Ovivo shall be entitled at  its option to tender delivery to 
Purchaser  at  the  point  or  points  of  manufacture,  and  in  default  of  Purchaser’s 
acceptance of delivery, to cause the Products to be stored at such a point or points of 
manufacture  at  Purchaser's  expense.  Such  tender,  if  accepted,  or  such  storage,  shall 
constitute delivery for all purposes of this proposal.  If shipment is postponed at request 
of  Purchaser,  or  due  to  delay  in  receipt  of  shipping  instructions,  payment  of  the 
purchase  price  shall  be  due  on  notice  from  Ovivo  that  the  Products  are  ready  for 
shipment. Handling, moving, storage,  insurance and other charges  thereafter  incurred 
by Ovivo with respect to the Products shall be for the account of Purchaser and shall be 
paid by Purchaser when invoiced. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 130 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 4 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

ITEM I ‐ CARROUSEL® SYSTEM  
 
Ovivo proposes to furnish: 
  ‐   Two (2) EliminatIR® Gate Upgrades 
  ‐   System Controls 
 
All mechanism(s) are for  installation  in the Carrousel System basins. The design of the proposed 
mechanisms  is  based  upon Ovivo's  standard  engineering  practices  and  details which meet  the 
intent of the project specifications. 
 
GATES 
 
ITEMS INCLUDED (per Gate, turning vane to be reused): 
 
‐   Actuator including: 
  ‐   Electric motor (460 volt/3 phase/ 60 hertz duty) 
  ‐   Worm gear reducer 
  ‐   Absolute position encoder 
  ‐   Electronic torque sensor 
‐   Stand (A36 Stl) 
‐   Anchors bolts (304 SS) 
‐   Assembly fasteners (304 SS) 
‐   Stem and shaft (SS/A36 Stl) 
‐   Bearings (UHMW PE) 
‐   Painting (see SURFACE PREPARATION AND PAINTING segment of this proposal) 
‐   Operation and Maintenance manuals 
‐   Service (see FIELD SERVICE segment of the proposal) 
‐   Freight, FOB factory, freight allowed 
   
APPROXIMATE TOTAL WEIGHT OF ONE (1) MECHANISM:         1,200 LBS 
 
APPROXIMATE WEIGHT OF HEAVIEST SINGLE COMPONENT:              700 LBS 
 
CONTROLS 
 
ITEMS INCLUDED (per Carrousel® System Controls): 
 
‐  One (1) Oculus System Control Panel, including: 
  ‐  NEMA Type 4X Enclosure w/Panel Lighting Kit:  
    ‐  Hoffman Stainless Steel Enclosure: CSD483610SSR  
    ‐  Hoffman Back Panel: CP4836 

Page 131 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 5 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

    ‐  Hoffman Panel Lighting Kit: LF120V18 
  ‐  CompactLogix System: 

‐   1769‐L33ER (processor)   
‐  1769‐PA4 
‐  1769‐IA16 
‐  1769‐OW16 
‐  1769‐IF8 
‐  1769‐OF8C 
‐  1769‐ECR 

  ‐  24VDC Power Supply 
    ‐  1606‐XLS120E  
  ‐  15in PanelView Plus w/Extended Features 
  ‐  Ethernet Switch 
    ‐  N‐Tron 105FX has 1 Fiber Port (ST connectors) and 4 copper ports 
  ‐  Terminal Blocks (as required), Manufacturer: Allen‐Bradley 
    ‐    Single Circuit Feed‐through Terminal Blocks: 1492‐J3 
    ‐    Fused Terminal Blocks w/LED indication on blown fuse: 1492‐H5 
    ‐  Terminal Blocks w/MOV Surge Protection for Analog signals: 1492‐JD3SS 
    ‐  Ground Terminal Blocks: 1492‐JG3 
    ‐  End Anchors: AB ‐ 1492‐EAJ35 
    ‐  Center Jumpers (as required): AB ‐ 1492‐CJJ5‐10 
    ‐   Terminal Block Labels 
  ‐  120V Surge Suppression 
    ‐  Allen‐Bradley: 4983‐DS120‐401 
  ‐  120V Programming Receptacle 
  ‐  Circuit Breakers (as required) 
    ‐  Allen‐Bradley 1489 Series of Miniature Circuit Breakers 
  ‐  Din Rail (as required) 
  ‐  Wireway with Covers 
    ‐  Manufacturer: Panduit 2”W x 3”T (White) 
  ‐  UPS – 1500VA 
  ‐  Remote Access 

ITEMS INCLUDED (with Instrumentation): 

‐  Four (4) Hach SC200 Analyzer, each including: 
  ‐  NEMA 4X enclosure with handrail mounting bracket. 
  ‐  Sun Shield. 
  ‐  RS485 MODBUS. 

‐  Two (2) Hach NITRATAX plus Sensor(s), including: 

Page 132 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 6 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

  ‐  UV Absorption Technology 
  ‐  Molded Cable 
  ‐  Mounting Hardware 

‐  Two (2) Hach AISE sc ISE Ammonium Probe Sensor(s), including: 
  ‐  Ion Selective Electrode Technology 
  ‐  Molded Cable 
  ‐  Mounting Hardware 

CLARIFICATIONS 

The control system will monitor/control all new equipment provided as part of this scope as well 
as control and monitor the four existing aerators and will monitor the two existing DO probes and 
the seven existing mixers for run and fault status. 

ITEMS NOT INCLUDED WITH CARROUSEL SYSTEM (But not limited to the following): 
 
‐   Installation 
‐   Vibration analysis testing 
‐   Velocity testing 
‐   Oxygen transfer testing 
‐  Bypass with across the line starter (internal) 
‐  Output Load Reactor 
‐  dV/dT Filter 
‐  External Wiring and Conduit 
‐  Power Factor Correction Capacitors (PFCC) 
‐  Harmonic Testing 
‐  Conformal Coatings 
‐  Pushbutton stations 
‐  Panel mounting components 
‐  Field wiring/installation 
‐   Bridges, walkways, stairs, ladders, and hand railing 
‐   Mist shields or curtains 
‐   Slide gates, sluice gates, or weirs 
‐   Tools, Warning signs and Oils/Lubricants 
‐   Grout 
‐   Permits, fees, samples, testing 
‐   Liquidated damages 
 
 

Page 133 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 7 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

SURFACE PREPARATION AND PAINTING 
 
  Submerged and non‐submerged fabricated steel shall be shop‐cleaned per SSPC‐SP‐10 
  and shop primed 1 coat(s) of Tnemec 161‐1211 (3.0 to 5.0 Mils D.F.T). Except stainless 
  steel will not receive a coating. 
 
  Actuator shall receive manufactures standard surface preparation. Shop 
  priming and painting shall consist of a high quality coating that is specifically resistant to 
  chemical, solvent, salt water, and acid environmental conditions. 
 
ESTIMATED SHIP DATE 
 
  8 weeks drawing preparation 
 
  4 weeks drawing approval 
 
  16 weeks fabrication & shipping 
 
  28 WEEKS TOTAL 
 
FIELD SERVICE 
 
  NO. OF TRIPS:     2 
  NO. OF DAYS:     4 
 
 
 

Page 134 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 8 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

PRICING TERMS 
  
  The prices quoted are based upon Purchaser’s acceptance of this proposal, through the 

submission of a purchase order or other written acceptance, being placed no later than 
July 15, 2015.  After expiration of the pricing effectivity period, prices will be subject to 
review and adjustment.   Prices quoted are FOB surface point of shipment, with freight 
included to an accessible point nearest the jobsite.  Federal, state or local sales, use or 
other taxes are not included in the sales price. 

 
PAYMENT TERMS 
 
  Payment terms are: 
 
  Ten percent (10%) net cash after submittal and 
 
  Eighty percent (80%) net cash upon shipment of major Product items; and   
   
  Ten percent (10%) upon the earlier of (a) Product startup and (b) one hundred eighty (180) 

days after completion of shipment.   
 
  Credit is subject to acceptance by the Ovivo Credit Department. 
 
  Purchaser shall remit payment for proper invoices received from Ovivo in accordance with 

the  payment  terms  stated  above  even  if  the  Purchaser  has  not  been  paid  by  the 
Purchaser’s  customer  (the  “Owner”),  if  Purchaser  is  not  the  end‐user  of  the  Products.  
Payments are due within thirty (30) days after Purchaser’s receipt of invoice.  Overdue and 
unpaid invoices are subject to a service charge of 2% per month until paid. 

 
  If  Purchaser  requests  or  causes  cancellation,  suspension  or  delay  of  Ovivo’s  work, 

Purchaser shall accept transfer of title and pay Ovivo all appropriate charges incurred up to 
date of such event plus Ovivo’s overhead and reasonable profit.   Additionally, all charges 
related to and risks  incidental to storage, disposition and/or resumption of work shall be 
borne solely by Purchaser.  Full payment for all work shall be due and payable thirty (30) 
days from the date work is placed into storage. 

Page 135 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 9 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

TAXES 
 
  Federal, State or  local sales, use or other taxes are not  included  in the sales price.   Such 

taxes, if applicable, shall be for Purchaser's account. 
 
BACKCHARGES 
 
  In no event shall Purchaser/Owner do or cause to be done any work, purchase any services 

or material or  incur any expense for the account of Ovivo, nor shall Ovivo be responsible 
for  such work  or  expenses,  until  after  Purchaser/Owner  has  provided Ovivo’s  PROJECT 
MANAGER  full details  (including estimate of material cost and amount and  rate of  labor 
required) of the work, services, material or expenses, and Ovivo has approved the same in 
writing.   Ovivo will not  accept Products  returned by Purchaser/Owner unless Ovivo has 
previously  accepted  the  return  in writing  and  provided  Purchaser/Owner with  shipping 
instructions. 

 

**PURCHASE ORDER SUBMISSION** 
 

In  an  effort  to  ensure  all  purchase  orders  are  processed  timely  and  efficiently,  please 
submit all purchase order documentation to the following department and address: 
 
  Attn: Order Entry Administrator 
  Ovivo USA, LLC 
  4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300  

Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 
   
  Fax #: 801‐931‐3080 
  Tel. #: 801‐931‐3000 

Page 136 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 10 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

ADDITIONAL FIELD SERVICE 
 
  When included and noted in the Product pricing of each proposal item, Ovivo will supply the service 

of  a  competent  field  representative  to  inspect  the  completed  installation  and  adjustment  of 
equipment,  supervise  initial  operation,  and  instruct  Owner's  personnel  in  the  operation  and 
maintenance of each proposal item for the number of eight (8) hour days.  Notwithstanding Ovivo’s 
performance  of  the  above‐referenced  services,  Ovivo  shall  not  be  held  liable  for  any  faulty 
workmanship  or  other  defects  in  the  Products’  installation,  or  for  other  goods  and/or  services, 
performed by  third parties unless such goods and/or services are expressly  included under Ovivo’s 
scope of work. 

 
  If additional service is required, it will be furnished to the Purchaser and billed to him at the current 

rate  for  each  additional  day  required,  plus  travel  and  lodging  expenses  incurred  by  the  service 
personnel during the additional service days. 

 
  It shall be the Purchaser's responsibility to provide for all necessary lubrication of all equipment prior 

to placing equipment in operation.  All equipment must be in operating condition and ready for the 
Field Service Engineer when called to the project location.  Should the Purchaser/Owner not be ready 
when the Field Service Engineer  is requested or  if additional service  is requested, the Ovivo current 
service rates will apply for each additional day required, plus travel and lodging expenses incurred by 
the service personnel during the additional service days. 

 
SURFACE PREPARATION AND PAINTING GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
  If painting  the Products  is  included under Ovivo’s scope of work, such Products shall be painted  in 

accordance with Ovivo’s standard practice.   Shop primer paint  is  intended to serve only as minimal 
protective finish.   Ovivo will not be responsible for condition of primed or finished painted surfaces 
after equipment leaves its shops.  Purchasers are invited to inspect painting in our shops for proper 
preparation  and  application  prior  to  shipment.   Ovivo  assumes  no  responsibility  for  field  service 
preparation or  touch‐up of shipping damage  to paint.   Painting of  fasteners and other  touch‐up  to 
painted surfaces will be by Purchaser's painting contractor after mechanism erection. 

 
  Clarifier motors,  gear motors  and  center drives  shall be  cleaned  and painted with manufacturer's 

standard primer paint only. 
 
  It is our intention to ship major steel components as soon as fabricated, often before drives, motors 

and other manufactured components.   Unless you can  insure  that shop primed steel shall be  field 
painted within  thirty  (30)  days  after  arrival  at  the  jobsite, we  encourage  you  to  purchase  these 
components in the bare metal (no surface prep or primer) condition. 

 
Ovivo  cannot  accept  responsibility  for  rusting  or  deterioration  of  shop  applied  prime  coatings  on 
delivered equipment  if  the primed  surfaces have not been  field painted within  thirty  (30) days of 
arrival at the jobsite using manufacturers' standard primers.  Other primers may have less durability.   

Page 137 of 235



 
 

  Proposal No: 2‐15‐0226 
Bid Date: January 16, 2015  

Page 11 of 13 

 

 P R O P O S A L 
Ovivo USA, LLC 

4246 Riverboat Road, Suite 300 • Salt Lake City, Utah 84123 USA 
www.ovivowater.com 

PRICE ESCALATION 
 

The prices submitted are based upon Purchaser’s acceptance of this proposal by July 15, 
2015. 
 
If the above indicated order date is exceeded, prices and shipping dates are subject to 
review and adjustment. Should shipment dates be exceeded because of actions of parties 
other than by Ovivo, escalation of the selling prices at the rate of 1.5% per month for each 
month or partial month of delay will be applied. This escalation will be applied only if 
shipment is delayed by actions of parties other than by Ovivo. 
 

GENERAL ITEMS NOT INCLUDED 
 

    Unless  specifically  and  expressly  included  above,  prices  quoted  by  Ovivo  do  not  include 
unloading,  hauling,  erection,  installation,  piping,  valves,  fittings,  stairways,  ladders, 
walkways, grating, wall spools, concrete, grout, sealant, dissimilar metal protection, oakum, 
mastic, field painting, oil or grease, electrical controls,  wiring, mounting hardware, welding, 
weld  rod,  shims,  leveling plates, protection against  corrosion due  to unprotected  storage, 
special engineering, or overall plant or system operating  instructions or any other products 
or services.   

     
    Performance and payment security,  including but not  limited to bonds,  letters of credit, or 

bank guarantees, are not included, but can be provided if purchased for an additional cost.   
 
MANUALS 
 

    The  content  of  any  and  all  installation,  operation  and maintenance  or  other manuals  or 
documents pertaining to the Products are copyrighted and shall not be modified without the 
express prior written consent of Ovivo.  Ovivo disclaims any liability for claims resulting from 
unauthorized modifications to any such manuals or other documents provided by Ovivo  in 
connection with the Project. 

Page 138 of 235



Page 139 of 235



 
Terms & Conditions of Sale 

 
1. ACCEPTANCE. The proposal of Ovivo USA, LLC (“SELLER”), as well as these terms and conditions 
of sale (collectively the “Agreement”), constitutes SELLER’s contractual offer of goods and associated 
services, and PURCHASER’s acceptance of this offer is expressly limited to the terms of the Agreement.  
The scope and terms and conditions of this Agreement represent the entire offer by SELLER and supersede 
all prior solicitations, discussions, agreements, understandings and representations between the parties.  Any 
scope or terms and conditions included in PURCHASER’s acceptance/purchase order that are in addition to 
or different from this Agreement are hereby rejected. 
2. DELIVERY.  Any statements relating to the date of shipment of the Products (as defined below) represent 
SELLER'S best estimate, but is not guaranteed, and SELLER shall not be liable for any damages due to late 
delivery. The Products shall be delivered to the delivery point or points in accordance with the delivery terms 
stated in SELLER’s proposal.  If such delivery is prevented or postponed by reason of Force Majeure (as 
defined below), SELLER shall be entitled at its option to tender delivery to PURCHASER at the point or 
points of manufacture, and in default of PURCHASER’s acceptance of delivery to cause the Products to be 
stored at such a point or points of manufacture at PURCHASER'S expense. Such tender, if accepted, or such 
storage, shall constitute delivery for all purposes of this agreement. If shipment is postponed at request of 
PURCHASER, or due to delay in receipt of shipping instructions, payment of the purchase price shall be due 
on notice from SELLER that the Products are ready for shipment. Handling, moving, storage, insurance and 
other charges thereafter incurred by SELLER with respect to the Products shall be for the account of 
PURCHASER and shall be paid by PURCHASER when invoiced.  
3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS. SELLER shall retain the fullest right, title, and interest in the Products to 
the extent permitted by applicable law, including a security interest in the Products, until the full purchase 
price has been paid to SELLER.  The giving and accepting of drafts, notes and/or trade acceptances to 
evidence the payments due shall not constitute or be construed as payment so as to pass SELLER’s interests 
until said drafts, notes and/or trade acceptances are paid in full. Risk of loss shall pass to PURCHASER at the 
delivery point. 
4. PAYMENT TERMS. SELLER reserves the right to ship the Products and be paid for such on a pro rata 
basis, as shipped.  If payments are not made by the due date, interest at a rate of two percent (2%) per month, 
calculated daily, shall apply from the due date for payment.  PURCHASER is liable to pay SELLER’S legal 
fees and all other expenses in respect of enforcing or attempting to enforce any of SELLER’S rights relating 
to a breach or threatened breach of the payment terms by PURCHASER. . 
5. TAXES. Unless otherwise specifically provided in SELLER’s quotation/proposal; PURCHASER shall pay 
and/or reimburse SELLER, in addition to the price, for all sales, use and other taxes, excises and charges 
which SELLER may pay or be required to pay to any government directly or indirectly in connection with the 
production, sale, transportation, and/or use by SELLER or PURCHASER, of any of the Products or services 
dealt with herein (whether the same may be regarded as personal or real property). PURCHASER agrees to 
pay all property and other taxes which may be levied, assessed or charged against or upon any of the Products 
on or after the date of actual shipment, or placing into storage for PURCHASER'S account. 
6. MECHANICAL WARRANTY. Solely for the benefit of PURCHASER, SELLER warrants that new 
equipment and parts manufactured by it and provided to PURCHASER (collectively, “Products”) shall be 
free from defects in material and workmanship.  The warranty period shall be twelve (12) months from 
startup of the equipment not to exceed eighteen (18) months from shipment. If any of SELLER’S Products 
fail to comply with the foregoing warranty, SELLER shall repair or replace free of charge to PURCHASER, 
EX WORKS SELLER’S FACTORIES or other location that SELLER designates, any Product or parts 
thereof returned to SELLER, which examination shall show to have failed under normal use and service 
operation by PURCHASER within the Warranty Period; provided, that if it would be impracticable for the 
Product or part thereof to be returned to SELLER, SELLER will send a representative to PURCHASER’s job 
site to inspect the Product. If it is determined after inspection that SELLER is liable under this warranty to 
repair or replace the Product or part thereof, SELLER shall bear the transportation costs of (a) returning the 
Product to SELLER for inspection or sending its representative to the job site and (b) returning the repaired or 
replaced Products to PURCHASER; however, if it is determined after inspection that SELLER is not liable 
under this warranty, PURCHASER shall pay those costs. For SELLER to be liable with respect to this 
warranty, PURCHASER must make its claims to SELLER with respect to this warranty in writing no later 
than thirty (30) days after the date PURCHASER discovers the basis for its warranty claim and in no event 
more than thirty (30) days after the expiration of the Warranty Period. In addition to any other limitation or 
disclaimer with respect to this warranty, SELLER shall have no liability with respect to any of the following: 
(i) failure of the Products, or damages to them, due to PURCHASER’s negligence or willful misconduct, 
abuse or improper storage, installation, application or maintenance (as specified in any manuals or written 
instructions that SELLER provides to the PURCHASER); (ii) any Products that have been altered or repaired 
in any way without SELLER’S prior written authorization; (iii) The costs of dismantling and reinstallation of 
the Products; (iv) any Products damaged while in transit or otherwise by accident; (v) decomposition of 
Products by chemical action, erosion or corrosion or wear to Products or due to conditions of temperature, 
moisture and dirt; or (vi) claims with respect to parts that are consumable and normally replaced during 
maintenance such as filter media, filter drainage belts and the like, except where such parts are not performing 
to SELLER’S estimate of normal service life, in which case, SELLER shall only be liable for the pro rata cost 
of replacement of those parts based on SELLER’S estimate of what the remaining service life of those parts 
should have been; provided, that failure of those parts did not result from any of the matters listed in clauses 
(i) through (v) above. With regard to third-party parts, equipment, accessories or components not of 
SELLER’s design, SELLER’S liability shall be limited solely to the assignment of available third-party 
warranties. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND 
MERCHANTABILITY, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL OR STATUTORY, ARE EXCLUDED TO 
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLE BY LAW. All warranties and obligations of SELLER shall 
terminate if PURCHASER fails to perform its obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to 
any failure to pay any charges due to SELLER. SELLER’S quoted price for the Products is based upon this 
warranty. Any increase in warranty obligation may be subject to an increase in price.  
7. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. All nonpublic information and data furnished to PURCHASER 
hereunder, including but not limited to price, size, type and design of the Products is the sole property of 
SELLER and submitted for PURCHASER'S own confidential use solely in connection with this Agreement 
and is not to be made known or available to any third party without SELLER’S prior written consent. 
8. PAINTING.  The Products shall be painted in accordance with SELLER'S standard practice, and 
purchased items such as motors, controls, speed reducers, pumps, etc., will be painted in accordance with 
manufacturers’ standard practices, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
9. DRAWINGS AND TECHNICAL DOCUMENTATION.  When PURCHASER requests approval of 
drawings before commencement of manufacture, shipment may be delayed if approved drawings are not 
returned to SELLER within fourteen (14) days of receipt by PURCHASER of such drawings for approval. 
SELLER will furnish only general arrangement, general assembly, and if required, wiring diagrams, erection 
drawings, installation and operation-maintenance manuals for SELLER'S equipment (in English language).  
SELLER will supply six (6) complete sets of drawings and operating instructions. Additional sets will be paid 
for by PURCHASER. Electronic files, if requested from SELLER, will be provided in pdf, jpg or tif format 
only. 
10. SET OFF. This Agreement shall be completely independent of all other contracts between the parties and 
all payments due to SELLER hereunder shall be paid when due and shall not be setoff or applied against any 
money due or claimed to be due from SELLER to PURCHASER on account of any other transaction or 
claim. 
11. SOFTWARE. PURCHASER shall have a nonexclusive and nontransferable license to use any 
information processing program supplied by SELLER with the Products.  PURCHASER acknowledges that 
such programs and the information contained therein is Confidential Information and agrees: a) not to copy or 
duplicate the program except for archival or security purposes; b) not to use the program on any computer 
other than the computer with which it is supplied; and c) to limit access to the program to those of its 
employees who are necessary to permit authorized use of the program. PURCHASER agrees to execute and 
be bound by the terms of any software license applicable to the Products supplied. 

12. PATENT INDEMNITY. SELLER will defend at its own expense any suit instituted against 
PURCHASER based upon claims that SELLER’s Product hereunder in and of itself constitutes an 
infringement of any valid apparatus claims of any United States patent issued and existing as of the date of 
this Agreement, if notified promptly in writing and given all information, assistance, and sole authority to 
defend and settle the same, and SELLER shall indemnify the PURCHASER against such claims of 
infringement. Furthermore, in case the use of the Products is enjoined in such suit or in case SELLER 
otherwise deems it advisable, SELLER shall, at its own expense and discretion, (a) procure for the 
PURCHASER the right to continue using the Products, (b) replace the same with non-infringing Products, (c) 
modify the Product so it becomes non-infringing, or (d) remove the Products and refund the purchase price 
less freight charges and depreciation. SELLER shall not be liable for, and PURCHASER shall indemnify 
SELLER for, any claim of infringement related to (a) the use of the Products for any purpose other than that 
for which it was furnished by SELLER, (b) compliance with equipment designs not furnished by SELLER or 
(c) use of the Products in combination with any other equipment.  The foregoing states the sole liability of 
SELLER for patent infringement with respect to the Products 
13. GENERAL INDEMNITY. Subject to the rights, obligations and limitations of liabilities of the parties 
set forth in this Agreement, PURCHASER shall protect and indemnify SELLER, its ultimate parent, its 
ultimate parent’s subsidiaries and each of their respective officers, directors, employees and agents, from and 
against all claims, demands and causes of action asserted by any entity to the extent of PURCHASER’s 
negligence or willful misconduct in connection with this Agreement. 
14. DEFAULT, TERMINATION. In the event that PURCHASER becomes insolvent, commits an act of 
bankruptcy or defaults in the performance of any term or condition of this Agreement, the entire unpaid 
portion of the purchase price shall, without notice or demand, become immediately due and payable. 
SELLER at its option, without notice or demand, shall be entitled to sue for said balance and for reasonable 
legal fees, plus out-of-pocket expenses and interest; and/or to enter any place where the Products are located 
and to take immediate possession of and remove the Products, with or without legal process; and/or retain all 
payments made as compensation for the use of the Products: and/or resell the Products, without notice or 
demand, for and on behalf of the PURCHASER, and to apply the net proceeds from such sale (after 
deduction from the sale price of all expenses of such sale and all expenses of retaking possession, repairs 
necessary to put the Products in saleable condition, storage charges, taxes, liens, collection and legal fees and 
all other expenses in connection therewith) to the balance then due to SELLER for the Products and to 
receive from the PURCHASER the deficiency between such net proceeds of sale and such balance. 
PURCHASER hereby waives all trespass, damage and claims resulting from any such entry, repossession, 
removal, retention, repair, alteration and sale. The remedies provided in this paragraph are in addition to and 
not limitations of any other rights of SELLER. 
15. CANCELLATION. PURCHASER may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon giving 
SELLER thirty (30) days prior written notice of such fact and paying SELLER for all costs and expenses 
(including overhead) incurred by it in performing its work and closing out the same plus a reasonable  profit 
thereon.  All such costs and expenses shall be paid to SELLER within ten (10) days of the termination of the 
Agreement, or be subject to an additional late payment penalty of five percent (5%) of the total amount of 
costs and expenses owed. 
16. REMEDIES. The rights and remedies of the PURCHASER in connection with the goods and services 
provided by SELLER hereunder are exclusive and limited to the rights and remedies expressly stated in this 
Agreement. 
17. INSPECTION. PURCHASER is entitled to make reasonable inspection of Products at SELLER’s 
facility.  SELLER reserves the right to determine the reasonableness of the request and to select an 
appropriate time for such inspection.  All costs of inspections not expressly included as an itemized part of 
the quoted price of the Products in this Agreement shall be paid by PURCHASER. 
18. WAIVER. Any failure by SELLER to enforce PURCHASER’s strict performance of any provision of 
this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of its right to subsequently enforce such provision or any other 
provision of this Agreement. 
19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. If applicable laws, ordinances, regulations or conditions require 
anything different from, or in addition to, that called for by this Agreement, SELLER will satisfy such 
requirements at PURCHASER'S written request and expense.  
20. FORCE MAJEURE. If SELLER is rendered unable, wholly or in material part, by reason of Force 
Majeure to carry out any of its obligations hereunder, then on SELLER’s notice in writing to PURCHASER 
within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the cause relied upon, such obligations shall be suspended. 
“Force Majeure” shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God, laws and regulations, strikes, civil 
disobedience or unrest, lightning, fire, flood, washout, storm, communication lines failure, delays of the 
PURCHASER or PURCHASER’s subcontractors, breakage or accident to equipment or machinery, wars, 
police actions, terrorism, embargos, and any other causes that are not reasonably within the control of the 
SELLER. If the delay is the result of PURCHASER’s action or inaction, then in addition to an adjustment in 
time, SELLER shall be entitled to reimbursement of costs incurred to maintain its schedule.  
21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is expressly understood that SELLER is an independent 
contractor, and that neither SELLER nor its principals, partners, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees or 
subcontractors are servants, agents, partners, joint ventures or employees of PURCHASER in any way 
whatsoever. 
22. SEVERABILITY. Should any portion of this Agreement, be held to be invalid or unenforceable under 
applicable law then the validity of the remaining portions thereof shall not be affected by such invalidity or 
unenforceability and shall remain in full force and effect. Furthermore, any invalid or unenforceable provision 
shall be modified accordingly within the confines of applicable law, giving maximum permissible effect to the 
parties’ intentions expressed herein. 
23. CHOICE OF LAW, CHOICE OF VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Utah, without regard to its rules regarding conflicts or choice of law. 
The parties submit to the jurisdiction and venue of the state and federal courts located in Salt Lake City, 
Utah. 
24. ASSIGNMENT.  PURCHASER shall not assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the SELLER.  Any attempt to make such an assignment or transfer shall be null and void.  
SELLER shall have the authority to assign, or otherwise transfer, its rights and obligations in connection with 
this Agreement, in whole or in part, upon prior written notice to PURCHASER. 
25. LIMITATION ON LIABILITY. TO THE EXTENT PERMISSIBLE BY LAW, SELLER SHALL 
HAVE NO FURTHER LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT IN EXCESS OF 
THE COST OF CORRECTING ANY DEFECTS, OR IN THE ABSENCE OF ANY DEFECT, IN 
EXCESS OF THE VALUE OF THE PRODUCTS SOLD HEREUNDER. NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY LIABILITIES OR RESPONSIBILITIES ASSUMED BY SELLER HEREUNDER, SELLER 
SHALL IN NO EVENT BE RESPONSIBLE TO PURCHASER OR ANY THIRD PARTY, 
WHETHER ARISING UNDER CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT 
LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, FOR LOSS OF ANTICIPATED PROFITS, LOSS BY REASON OF 
PLANT SHUTDOWN, NON-OPERATION OR INCREASED EXPENSE OF OPERATION, SERVICE 
INTERRUPTIONS, COST OF PURCHASED OR REPLACEMENT POWER, COST OF MONEY, LOSS 
OF USE OF CAPITAL OR REVENUE OR ANY OTHER INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, 
PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE, WHETHER ARISING 
FROM DEFECTS, DELAY, OR FROM ANY OTHER CAUSE WHATSOEVER. 
 
   REVISION DATE – SEPTEMBER 2010 

Page 140 of 235



Page 141 of 235



Resolution #2015-23 
RESOLUTION 

Sole Source Justification 
Little Creek Water Reclamation Facility 

Nutritient Upgrades 

Whereas,  a recommendation for the sole source procurement of an instrumentation and 
control system package by Ovivo at the Little Creek Water Reclamation Facility has been 
received; and 

Whereas, the primary nutrient removal process at the Little Creek Water Reclamation 
Facility is two Ovivo Carousel Wastewater Treatment Systems and a proprietary control 
panel and program operates them both; and 

Whereas, Environmental Engineers and Scientists Hazen and Sawyer recently completed 
the Nitrogen Removal Study, which recommended new operational features be added to 
the existing process; and 

Whereas, these additions to the process include two ammonia probes, tow nitrate 
analyzers, two mechanical gate actuators, and a program to utilize information from this 
equipment in order to optimize operations; and 

Whereas, Ovivo has developed a new control system that would better provide 
operational control as well as potential cost savings.  Sole sourcing Ovivo will maintain the 
single point of responsibility on Ovivo to ensure the system works as designed; and 

Whereas, Ovivo submitted a quote for furnishing the instrumentation and control system 
for a price of $240,295, and this is considered to be a fair price. 

Now Therefore, the Honorable Mayor and Town Council approve the above sole source 
justification. 

Duly proclaimed this 1st day of June, 2015 while in regular session. 

____________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC, NCCMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 142 of 235



TOWN OF CAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item:  3g   Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE:  Warranty and Dedication Acceptance 

DESCRIPTION: East Village Lift Station, Gravity Sewer & Force Main 

Johnston Medical Hospital-Water/Sewer 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date:  Action:   Info. Provided:   

5-18-15 Place on  June 1, 2015  Inspectors Memos 
Consent Agenda 

6-1-15 Approval Inspectors Memo 

Page 143 of 235



Page 144 of 235



Page 145 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 4a Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: INTROUDUCTION OF NEW TOWN OF CLAYTON EMPLOYEE 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. David DeYoung, Planning Director will introduce 
Stephanie Ross, who will serve as the new Downtown 
Development Coordinator 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date:  Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 None N/A 

Page 146 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 5a Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Public Hearing 

DESCRIPTION: Public Hearing will be held to hear public comment on the 
proposed 2015-2016 FY Budget. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Set Public Hearing Public Notice 
For June 1, 2015 

6-1-15 Receive public comments N/A 
Place on June 15, 2015 Agenda 
for Approval/Disapproval 

Page 147 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 5b Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Public Hearing - Rezoning – 2014-99 – Magnolia Pointe – PD-MU and 
R-10 to R-8 

DESCRIPTION: Public Hearing will be held in regard to request to rezone the 
above property, which is located on Shotwell Road in 
between US 70 Business Highway west and Amelia Church 
Road.  This 13.89 acre parcel is vacant and across Shotwell 
Road from Lions’s Spring.  

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Set Public Hearing Staff Report 
for June 1, 2015  Maps 

Application 

6-1-15 Public Hearing Staff Report 
Maps 
Application 
Motion Form 
Ordinance  

Page 148 of 235



Page 1 of 3 

Town Council 
May 18, 2015 

STAFF REPORT

Application Number: RZ 2014-99 
Project Name: Magnolia Pointe Rezoning 

NC PIN / Tag #: 165914-33-6257 / 05B02031V 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: NA 
Applicant:  ASCO Builders Inc., c/o Matt Shephens (mattshephens@bellsouth.net) 
Owner: ASCO Builders Inc. 

Neighborhood Meeting:  Held on 08/26/2014. 

Public Noticing: 

 sign posted April 17, 2015

 letters mailed TBD, 2015

 Published notice placed as required per Section 155.702(D)(2)(a) of the UDC

PROJECT LOCATION:   The property is located on Shotwell Road, in between US 70 Bus Hwy W and Amelia 
Church Rd. This vacant parcel is across Shotwell Rd from Lion’s Spring. 

REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting approval to rezone 13.89 acres at the location described above from 
Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10) to Residential-8 (R-8).  

SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 13.89 acres  

Present Zoning:  Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10) 

Proposed Zoning: Residential-8 (R-8) 

Existing Use: Vacant 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 149 of 235

mailto:mattshephens@bellsouth.net


Page 2 of 3 
 

North:   Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
Existing Use: Single Family Residential 

 
South:   Zoning: Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Office-Institutional (O-I) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate planned development and a doctor’s office. 
 
East:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Lion’s Gate planned development (approved for townhome development)  and 

Lion’s Spring retirement residential 
 
West:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
 Existing Use: Single Family Residential  
   

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 
 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval for rezoning of the subject property to Residential-8. The applicant has 
indicated that if approved, the site would be developed as an open-space subdivision.   
 
R-8 permits development of single family lots with a minimum of 8,000 square feet in a conventional 
subdivision.  If developed as an open space subdivision, single family lots are permitted at a minimum of 6,000 
sf, or 4,800 sf if alley-loaded. Duplexes, townhomes, and multi-family development are permitted only with a 
Special Use Permit.  
  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The site is bounded on three sides by some form of residential use.  The site is currently vacant and has been 
graded. This rezoning request is running concurrently with a subdivision plan for the same property (PSD2014-
97). The rezoning and proposed development is compatible with surrounding uses. 
 
Access/Streets:   
The property fronts on and is currently accessed from Shotwell Road. 

 
Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
This rezoning is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan, Goal 2.5: “More Housing Opportunities: 
Beyond Starter Homes.” 
 

 

CONSIDERATIONS:  
 

 The applicant is requesting a rezoning from PD-MU and R-10 to R-8, in anticipation of a R-8 Open Space 
Residential Subdivision. 

 Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to the 
Town Council.  

Page 150 of 235



Page 3 of 3 
 

 When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing 
whether its action is consistent with an adopted plans and policies of the town and explaining why the 
board considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest. 

 Application has since been revised to a standard zoning category instead of a PD zoning category, with 
minor alterations to the original site layout. 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning. 
 

 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Planning Board recommended approval of the rezoning. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Aerial Map 
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map 
3) Proposed Land Use Map 
4) Table 2.1 – allowed uses 
5) Application 
6) Neighborhood Meeting Materials (if available) 
7) Planning Board Motion Form 

 

Page 151 of 235



SH
OTW

EL
L 

RD
  

MULBERRY RD 

RIDGE DR 

US 70 BUS HWY W

VE
R

R
A

ZA
N

O
 P

L TU
SC

A
R

O
R

A LN

SI
O

U
X 

LN

KENMORE DR 

KE
SW

IC
K 

LN
 

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

03/14/2015

GUY RD 

US 70 BUS HWY W MAIN ST  

SH
O

TW
EL

L 
R

D
  

C
IT

Y 
R

D
 

LOMBARD ST 

MULBERRY RD 
RIDGE DR 

SE
S

 D
R

  

BROOK ST  

0 2,9001,450 Feet

Vicinity Map

Aerial Map

0 500250
Feet

±

Subject parcel

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Aerial.mxd

Page 152 of 235



B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
O

TW
EL

L 
RD

  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD

RIDGE DR 

FE
RN

W
OO

D 
DR

 

TU
S

C
A

R
O

R
A LN VE

R
R

A
ZA

N
O

 P
L 

SIO
U

X
 LN

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

3/14/2015

GUY RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MAIN ST  SH
O

TW
EL

L 
R

D
 

LOMBARD ST 

MULBERRY RD 
RIDGE DR 

SE
S

 D
R

  

BROOK ST  

0 4,7002,350 Feet

B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
O

TW
EL

L 
RD

  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD

RIDGE DR

FE
RN

W
OO

D 
DR

 

TU
S

C
A

R
O

R
A LN VE

R
R

A
ZA

N
O

 P
L 

SIO
U

X
 LN

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,000500
Feet

0 1,000500
Feet

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Existing and Proposed Zoning.mxd

R-8

Legend
Subject parcel

R-E

R-10

R-8

R-6

PD-R

O-R

B-1

B-2

B-3

PD-C

I-1

I-2

O-I

PD-MU

R-10

Page 153 of 235



Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)
PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

03/14/2015

GUY RD 

US 70 BUS HWY W
MAIN ST  

C
IT

Y 
R

D
 

LOMBARD ST 

RIDGE DR 

SE
S

 D
R

 

0 4,4002,200 Feet

US 70 BUS HW
Y W

AMELIA CHURCH RD

SH
O

TW
EL

L 
RD

  

RIDGE DR 

MOORE S
T  

MULBERRY RD

CHARLE
S S

T  

AT
KIN

SON S
T  

MAIN ST  

FE
RN

W
OO

D 
DR

 

ROBERTSON S
T  

SECOND ST  

BROOK ST  

KENMORE DR 

W
ILLOW

 DR  

PARK DR  
C

R
EE

K
V

IE
W

 D
R

CARTER ST  

SIO
U

X
 LN

KERSHAW LN 

JOEL CT 

RIDGE DR  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)

0 1,000500
Feet

Legend
Subject parcel

PROPOSED LAND USE
CBD
COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MULTI-FAMILY
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE INSTITUTIONAL
OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION
PUBLIC
RESIDENTIAL-INFILL
RESIDENTIAL-LIGHT
RESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM
SMALL AREA PLAN

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - FLUM.mxd

Page 154 of 235



Abridged Use Table, created: March 16, 2015 
Town of Clayton, NC 

Table 2-1 Use Regulations 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 

Residential Uses 

Adult Care Home (2-6 Adults) P P P P §155.301(A) 

Adult Care Home (7-12 Adults) S S S S C S S S §155.301(A) 

Adult Care Home (13+ Adults) C S S S §155.301(A) 

Alley Loaded House P P P §155.301(B) 

Apartments S S S S S S S S §155.301(C) 

Boarding House C P P §155.301(D) 

Child Care Home C C C C C §155.301(E) 

Manufactured Home P §155.301(F) 

Manufactured Home Park S §155.301(G) 

Nursing Home (Congregate Living Facility) C C P S P §155.301(H) 

Two family House S S S S §155.301(I) 

Townhouse S S S S S S S S §155.301(J) 

Security/Caretaker Quarters C C §155.301(K) 

Single Family House P P P P §155.301(L) 

Upper-story Residence S S S S S P P P P §155.301(M) 

Zero Lot Line House P P P §155.301(N) 

Public and Civic Uses 

Assembly, Not For Profit S P P §155.302(A) 

Cemetery P P §155.302(B)

Church or Place of Worship C C C C C C C §155.302(C)

College or University P §155.302(D)

Day Care (Supervision for 3-8 ) C C C C C §155.302(E)

Day Care (Supervision for 9+) C C C C C P P C P §155.302(E)

Government Service S S S S P P P P P P P §155.302(F)

Hospital or Medical Center P P §155.302(G)

School (Elementary or Secondary) S S S S S §155.302(H)

School (Technical, Trade or Business) S S S S P P P P P §155.302(I)

Recreational Uses 

Entertainment, Indoor  C C C P P §155.303(A) 

Entertainment, Outdoor C P §155.303(B) 

Fitness Center C C C P P §155.303(C) 

Golf Course P P P P §155.303(D) 

Gun Range S S S S S §155.303(E) 

Park, Active S S S S S S S S S S S §155.303(F) 

Park, Passive C C C C P P C C C C C §155.303(G) 

Stable, Private P §155.303(H) 

Agricultural Uses 

Agriculture, Livestock C C §155.304(A) 

Agriculture, Sales and Service P C §155.304(B) 

Nursery P P P C P §155.304(C) 

Commercial Uses 

Adult Oriented Business S S §155.305(A) 

Bed and Breakfast P P P P P §155.305(B) 

Car Wash/Auto Detailing C C P P §155.305(C) 

Contractor Office C C P P P §155.305(D) 

Contractor Storage Yard C C P §155.305(E) 

Convenience Store with Gas Sales C C P P P §155.305(F) 

Creative Studio P P P P P §155.305(G) 

Financial Institution P P P P P §155.305(H) 

Funeral Home C P P P P P §155.305(I) 

Hotel/Motel S S S P §155.305(J) 

Kennel C C §155.305(K) 

Laundry Services C C P P §155.305(L) 

Lounge, Cocktail S S S S §155.305(M) 

Microbrewery P P P P §155.305(N) 

Page 155 of 235



Abridged Use Table, created: March 16, 2015 
Town of Clayton, NC 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 

Newspaper Publisher P P P §155.305(O) 

Office, General P P P P P P §155.305(P) 

Office, Medical P P P P P P §155.305(Q) 

Outdoor Seating/Sidewalk Cafe C P C C §155.305(R) 

Pawn Shop C P §155.305(S) 

Radio or Television Studio P P P §155.305(T) 

Restaurant, Drive-Through  C C C §155.305(U) 

Restaurant, General C P P P C §155.305(V) 

Retail Sales, General P P §155.305(W) 

Retail Sales, Neighborhood P P P §155.305(X) 

Self-storage Facility C P P §155.305(Y) 

Service, General P P §155.305(Z) 

Service, Neighborhood P P P §155.305(AA) 

Tattoo Parlor S §155.305(BB) 

Towing Service and Storage C C C §155.305(CC) 

Vehicle Repair or Service S P P §155.305(DD) 

Vehicle Sales and Rental P P P §155.305(EE) 

Veterinary Clinic C C C P §155.305(FF) 

Video Sweepstakes Operations S §155.305(GG) 

Industrial Uses 

Building Supplies, Wholesale C P P §155.306(A) 

Crematorium P P §155.306(B) 

Gas and Fuel, Wholesale P P §155.306(C) 

Laboratory, Research P P P P §155.306(D) 

Manufacturing, Limited P P §155.306(E) 

Manufacturing, General C P §155.306(F) 

Manufacturing, Heavy P §155.306(G) 

Research and Development P P P P §155.306(H) 

Warehouse, Freight Movement C P P §155.306(I) 

Utilities 

Recycling Center P P §155.307(A) 

Renewable Energy Facility S C P §155.307(B) 

Telecommunication Facility S S S S S S S S S S S §155.307(C) 

Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P §155.307(D) 

Utility, Major P P §155.307(E) 

Waste Service C P §155.307(F) 

Key: 

P – Permitted 

C – Conditional Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) ( § 155.710) 

S – Special Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Town Council (TC) ) ( § 155.711) 

 (Ord. 2005-11-02, passed 11-21-05; Am. Ord. 2007-05-02, passed 5-7-07; Am. Ord. 2009-06-06, 
passed 6-1-09; Am. Ord. 2009-08-03, passed 8-3-09; Am. Ord 2014-12-02, passed 12-1-14) 

Page 156 of 235

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0#JD_155.710
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0#JD_155.710


Page 157 of 235



Page 158 of 235



Page 159 of 235



Page 160 of 235



Page 161 of 235



Page 162 of 235



Page 163 of 235



Page 164 of 235



Page 165 of 235



Page 166 of 235



Page 167 of 235



Page 168 of 235



Page 169 of 235



Page 170 of 235



Page 171 of 235



Page 172 of 235



Page 173 of 235



Page 174 of 235



Page 175 of 235



Page 176 of 235



Page 177 of 235



Page 178 of 235



COUNCIL MOTION SHEET 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

(Rezoning)  

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  Rezoning – 2014-99 – Magnolia 
Pointe – PD MU & R-10 to R-8. 

[IF APPROVING] 

and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY]. 

Page 179 of 235



Ordinance # 2015-06-01 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND ZONING MAP 

OF THE TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS a petition has been filed with the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton requesting an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the Town 
of Clayton to include in the Residential-8 (R-8) zone the property described below, said 
property formerly being zoned  Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and 
Residential -10 (R-10) ; and  

WHEREAS said property is owned by ASCO Builders Inc.; and 

WHEREAS the Planning Board of the Town of Clayton has reviewed the 
proposed change(s) and made a recommendation thereupon; and 

WHEREAS notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed change was 
published in accordance with law in the Clayton News Star, a local newspaper, as 
required by Section 155.702(D) of the Clayton Unified Development Code and by 
Section 160A-364 of the North Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS a notice of the proposed zoning classification action was mailed to 
the owner(s) of the parcel(s) of land involved, as shown on the County Tax Listings, and 
to the owners of all parcels of land abutting that (those) parcel(s) of land and within 100 
feet of the subject parcel(s) of land, as shown on the County Tax Listings, by depositing a 
copy of the same in the United States Mail, first class postage paid, as required by 
Section 155.702(D) of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clayton and by Section 
160A-384 of the General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS the said public hearing was actually conducted at 6:30 p.m. on June 
1, 2015, wherein a reasonable opportunity was given to all those in attendance to speak 
either in favor or against the said change or to make relevant comments; 

THEREFORE, after duly considering the matter, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF 
THE TOWN OF CLAYTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN: 

 SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code of the Town of Clayton is hereby 
amended to include in the Residential-8 (R-8) zone the following described property: 

 General Description: 
Approximately 13.89 acres of property located on Shotwell Road, in between US 70 
Business Highway W and Amelia Church Road.  This vacant parcel is across Shotwell 
Road from Lion’s Spring. 

Page 180 of 235



 
 
Specific Description: 
 All of NC Parcel Identification Number: 165914-33-6257 
 
 SECTION 2.  That the official Town of Clayton Zoning Map is hereby amended to 
include in the Residential-8 (R-8) zone the above-described property and will be so 
marked. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That if any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
 
 DULY ADOPTED by the Clayton Town Council this 1st day of June, 2015, while in 
regular session. 
 
 

         ____________________________ 
               Jody L. McLeod 

 Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 

Page 181 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 5c Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Public Hearing - Text Amendment – Article 2 – Zoning Districts 

DESCRIPTION: A Public Hearing will be held with regard to proposed 
amendment to Article 2 – Zoning Districts  of the Unified 
Development Code.  This proposal would establish a Public 
Facilities district. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Set Public Hearing Table 2-1  
for June 1, 2015  Use Regulations 

6-1-15 Public Hearing Table 2-1  
Use Regulations 
Motion Form 
Ordinance 

Page 182 of 235



§ 155.200 DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED

To carry out the provisions of this Chapter, within the jurisdiction of the Town, the following zoning 
districts are established.  

(A) General Use Districts 

(2)  Nonresidential 

(h) PF | Public Facilities.  The PF district is established to provide a coordinated land 
planning approach to the sale, rent, lease, purchase, management, or alteration of publicly owned or 
operated lands. Notwithstanding those public uses permitted elsewhere in this Code, the PF district 
is primarily intended for, although not limited to, public parks and recreation areas, public buildings 
and facilities, and other capital improvements of a significant nature. 

§ 155.202 - Table 2-1 Use Regulations 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Residential Uses 
Adult Care Home (2-6 Adults) P P P P §155.301(A) 
Adult Care Home (7-12 Adults) S S S S C S S S §155.301(A) 
Adult Care Home (13+ Adults) C S S S §155.301(A) 
Alley Loaded House P P P §155.301(B) 
Apartments S S S S S S S S §155.301(C) 
Boarding House C P P §155.301(D) 
Child Care Home C C C C C §155.301(E) 
Manufactured Home P §155.301(F) 
Manufactured Home Park S §155.301(G) 
Nursing Home (Congregate Living Facility) C C P S P §155.301(H) 
Two family House S S S S §155.301(I) 
Townhouse S S S S S S S S §155.301(J) 
Security/Caretaker Quarters C C C §155.301(K) 
Single Family House P P P P §155.301(L) 
Upper-story Residence S S S S S P P P P §155.301(M) 
Zero Lot Line House P P P §155.301(N) 

Public and Civic Uses 
Assembly, Not For Profit S P P P §155.302(A) 
Cemetery P P P §155.302(B) 
Church or Place of Worship C C C C C C C §155.302(C) 
College or University P P §155.302(D) 
Day Care (Supervision for 3-8 ) C C C C C §155.302(E) 
Day Care (Supervision for 9+) C C C C C P P C P §155.302(E) 
Government Service S S S S P P P P P P P P §155.302(F) 
Hospital or Medical Center P P P §155.302(G) 
School (Elementary or Secondary) S S S S S P §155.302(H) 
School (Technical, Trade or Business) S S S S P P P P P P §155.302(I) 
Recreational Uses 
Entertainment, Indoor  C C C P P P §155.303(A) 

ARTICLE 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS  

Page 183 of 235



Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Entertainment, Outdoor         C P  P §155.303(B) 
Fitness Center      C C C P P  P §155.303(C) 
Golf Course P P P P        P §155.303(D) 
Gun Range       S S S S S S §155.303(E) 
Park, Active S S S S S S S S S S S P §155.303(F) 
Park, Passive C C C C P P C C C C C P §155.303(G) 
Stable, Private P            §155.303(H) 
Agricultural Uses 
Agriculture, Livestock C          C  §155.304(A) 
Agriculture, Sales and Service P          C  §155.304(B) 
Nursery P     P P C P   P §155.304(C) 
Commercial Uses 
Adult Oriented Business         S  S  §155.305(A) 
Bed and Breakfast P     P P P P    §155.305(B) 
Car Wash/Auto Detailing      C C P P    §155.305(C) 
Contractor Office      C C  P P P  §155.305(D) 
Contractor Storage Yard         C C P  §155.305(E) 
Convenience Store with Gas Sales       C C P P P  §155.305(F) 
Creative Studio     P P P P P    §155.305(G) 
Financial Institution     P P P P P    §155.305(H) 
Funeral Home    C P P P P P    §155.305(I) 
Hotel/Motel      S S S P    §155.305(J) 
Kennel C       C     §155.305(K) 
Laundry Services       C  C P P  §155.305(L) 
Lounge, Cocktail       S  S S S  §155.305(M) 
Microbrewery       P  P P P  §155.305(N) 
Newspaper Publisher         P P P  §155.305(O) 
Office, General     P P P P P P  P §155.305(P) 
Office, Medical     P P P P P P   §155.305(Q) 
Outdoor Seating/Sidewalk Cafe      C P C C    §155.305(R) 
Pawn Shop         C P   §155.305(S) 
Radio or Television Studio         P P P  §155.305(T) 
Restaurant, Drive-Through         C C C   §155.305(U) 
Restaurant, General      C P P P C   §155.305(V) 
Retail Sales, General       P  P    §155.305(W) 
Retail Sales, Neighborhood       P P P    §155.305(X) 
Self-storage Facility         C P P  §155.305(Y) 
Service, General       P  P    §155.305(Z) 
Service, Neighborhood       P P P    §155.305(AA) 
Tattoo Parlor         S    §155.305(BB) 
Towing Service and Storage         C C C  §155.305(CC) 
Vehicle Repair or Service         S P P  §155.305(DD) 
Vehicle Sales and Rental         P P P  §155.305(EE) 
Veterinary Clinic      C C C P    §155.305(FF) 
Video Sweepstakes Operations          S   §155.305(GG) 
Industrial Uses 
Building Supplies, Wholesale         C P P  §155.306(A) 
Crematorium          P P  §155.306(B) 
Gas and Fuel, Wholesale          P P P §155.306(C) 
Laboratory, Research      P   P P P  §155.306(D) 
Manufacturing, Limited          P P  §155.306(E) 
Manufacturing, General          C P  §155.306(F) 
Manufacturing, Heavy           P  §155.306(G) 
Research and Development      P   P P P  §155.306(H) 
Warehouse, Freight Movement         C P P  §155.306(I) 
Utilities 
Recycling Center          P P P §155.307(A) 
Renewable Energy Facility S         C P P §155.307(B) 
Telecommunication Facility S S S S S S S S S S S S §155.307(C) 
Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P P §155.307(D) 

Page 184 of 235



Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Utility, Major          P P P §155.307(E) 
Waste Service          C P P §155.307(F) 
 Key: 
 P – Permitted  
 C – Conditional Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) ( § 155.710) 
 S – Special Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Town Council (TC) ) ( § 155.711) 

 
 
 

§ 155.203, PART 2. Table 2-5 Nonresidential Dimensional Standards 

Zoning 
District 

Lot Standards Minimum Setbacks (ft.) Building Standards(3) 

Min. Lot 
Area 

(sq.ft.) 

Min. 
Lot 

Width 
(ft.) 

Public 
Water & 

Sewer 

Street /  
Front 
(Max.) 

Side 
Interior 

(abutting 
residential) 

Side 
Street 

Rear 
(abutting 

residential) 

Max. 
Building 
Height 
(ft.)(1) 

Building 
Coverage 

Impervious 
Surface 

O-R 6,000 50 Required 20 6 (6) 10 20 (20) 35 50% 75% 

O-I 6,000 60 Required 30 10 (30) 20 20 (30) 60 50% 75% 
B-1(1) None None Required 0(2) 0 (30) 0 0 (30) 50 -- -- 
B-2 6,000 50 Required 20 10 (30) 10 20 (30) 35 50% 75% 
B-3 8,000 60 Required 25 15 (30) 30 30 (30) 60 50% 75% 
I-1 20,000 100 Required 50 20 (30) 30 40 (40) 50 50% 75% 
I-2 20,000 100 Required 50 20 (30) 30 40 (40) 50 50% 75% 
PF -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Notes: 
(1) No maximum building coverage or impervious surface limits in the B-1 Zoning District 
(2) Maximum 10 foot street yard setback in B-1 Zoning District 
(3) Minimum Building Separation in all Zoning Districts is 20 feet 
(4) The Town Council may grant a special use permit in accordance with § 155.711 for structures exceeding the maximum height limits 

TABLE 4-5 COMPATIBILITY BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Subject Property 
District 

Adjacent Property District 
R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2  PF 

R-E - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-10 A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-8 B A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-6 B A A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
O-R B A A A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
O-I B B B B A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
B-1 B B B B B B - - B - - - - - - - - 
B-2 B B B B B B - - - - - - - - - - - - 
B-3 C C C C C B B B - - - - - - B 
I-1 C C C C C C C C B - - - - B 
I-2 C C C C C C C C B - - - - B 
PF - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

Formatted Table

Page 185 of 235

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710


Page 186 of 235



COUNCIL MOTION SHEET 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

(Text Amendment)  

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  Text Amendment Modification to 
Article 2 of the Unified Development Code. 

[IF APPROVING] 

and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY]. 

Page 187 of 235



Ordinance No.  2015-06-02 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 155 

BEING HEREBY ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF CLAYTON, 
NORTH CAROLINA to amend Chapter 155, Article 2, §155.200(h) to read as follows: 

 (A) General Use Districts 

(2) Nonresidential 

(h) PF | Public Facilities. The PF district is established to provide a coordinated land 

planning approach to the sale, rent, lease, purchase, management, or alteration of publicly 

owned or operated lands. Notwithstanding those public uses permitted elsewhere in this 

Code, the PF district is primarily intended for, although not limited to, public parks and 

recreation areas, public buildings and facilities, and other capital improvements of a 

significant nature. 

Duly adopted by the Clayton Town Council this 1st day of June, 2015, while in regular session. 

_________________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________        __________________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC     Katherine E. Ross 
Town Clerk                  Town Attorney 

Page 188 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 6a Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Downtown Parking 

DESCRIPTION: At the request of Council Member Holder, this item has been 
added to the agenda to continue discussion regarding 
Downtown Parking issues.   

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date:  Action:  Info. Provided: 

5-4-15 Discussion N/A 

Page 189 of 235



sTOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7a Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Land and Water Conservation Resolution 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. Larry Bailey, Parks and Recreation Director, will be 
present to ask for Council support with regard to this request.  
This resolution will acknowledge the need to preserve,   
develop and ensure access to outdoor recreation facilities for 
the purpose of strengthening the health of Town of Clayton  
citizens. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date:  Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 Place on June 15, 2015 Resolution 
Consent Agenda 

Page 190 of 235



A RESOLUTION TO MAINTAIN AND SUPPORT THE REAUTHORIZATION OF THE LAND 
AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND (LWCF) EQUITABLE TREATMENT OF THE STATE ASSISTANCE 

PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, in 1964, the Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) was enacted to help preserve, 
develop and ensure access to outdoor recreation facilities for the purpose of strengthening the health of 
U.S. citizens; and   

WHEREAS, over the past 50 years the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act has established one of the 
most successful federal/state and local partnerships in history, which stimulated hundreds of millions of 
dollars from private, local and state sources matching dollar-for-dollar federal funds for outdoor 
recreation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina and its local governments have experienced the LWCF State 
Assistance Program’s success with $80 million in LWCF assistance to develop more than 890 state and 
local projects covering 97 counties in the state; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton has experienced the LWCF State Assistance Program’s success, first-
hand, with $10,000 in federal funding leveraged dollar-for-dollar with local projects such as the 
construction of Legend Park in 1983; and 

WHEREAS, lands used for LWCF State Assistance projects must remain in recreational use in perpetuity, 
thereby protecting outdoor recreation opportunities for future generations of the citizens of the Town 
of Clayton; and  

WHEREAS, the LWCF is budget neutral, having been authorized with a dedicated funding source of 
Outer Continental Shelf (OCS) offshore oil and gas leasing revenues and in 2013, OCS revenues totaled 
over $9 billion; and 

WHEREAS,  when the LWCF Act was passed by Congress its primary purpose was to provide outdoor 
recreation for Americans in close to home locations, guaranteeing that sixty percent (60%) of the Act’s 
funds were to be dedicated to the states and territories; and 

WHEREAS, the LWCF Act was later amended to eliminate the sixty percent (60%) guarantee for the 
state’s LWCF shares, though, with guarantees of not less than forty percent (40%) of annual 
appropriations for federal LWCF project purposes; and 

WHEREAS, since 1988, only twelve percent (12%) of the total appropriated LWCF dollars have gone to 
the State Assistance Program; and  

WHEREAS, the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act will expire in September, 2015, and assessments 
by the National Park Service show significant unmet needs for outdoor recreation in state, local and 
urban areas, including over $1 billion in unmet needs in North Carolina; and 

Page 191 of 235



WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton strongly supports reauthorizing LWCF State Assistance funding to enable 
planning, acquisition, development and rehabilitation of outdoor recreation facilities and opportunities 
at the state, local and urban level; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Town of Clayton supports the reauthorization of the Land and 
Water Conservation Fund including full, permanent funding with fair and equitable treatment for the 
State Assistance Program of no less than a minimum of forty percent (40%) guaranteed funding for the 
Stateside Assistance Account. 

Duly adopted this 15th day of June, 2015 while in regular session. 

__________________________________ 

Jody L. McLeod 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 192 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7b Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Resolution - Supplemental Bond Order Amendments 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. Robert McKie, Finance Director, will be present to provide 
additional information regarding resolution. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 Approval of Resolutions Resolution 

Page 193 of 235



Resolution #2015-24 
TOWN COUNCIL 

TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

Excerpt of Minutes 
of Meeting on 
June 1, 2015 

Present:  Mayor ____________________ presiding, and  

Councilmen: _______________________________________________________________ 

Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 

* * * * * * * * * * 

Councilman ____________________ introduced the following First Supplemental Bond 

Order the title of which was read: 

FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL BOND ORDER AMENDING CERTAIN 
PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDER ADOPTED BY THE TOWN 

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CLAYTON ON JUNE 17, 2008 

WHEREAS, on June 11, 2000, the Town of Clayton, North Carolina (the “Town”), a 
municipality of the State of North Carolina, duly adopted, pursuant to the provisions of The State 
and Local Government Revenue Bond Act (Article 5 of Chatper 159 of the General Statutes of 
North Carolina, as amended), a bond order authorizing the Town to issue revenue bonds to 
finance improvemens to the Town’s electric system (the “Original Bond Order”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Order and appropriate series resolutions thereunder, 
the Town has issued its Electric System Revenue Bond, Series 2014 (the “2014 Bond”) to 
finance certain improvements to the System (as defined in the Original Bond Order); and 

WHEREAS, the Town proposes to issue its $650,000 Electric System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2015 (the “2015 Bond”), to finance additional improvements to the System; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has determined that to facilitate the issuance of the 2015 Bond 
and any Additional Bonds issued under the Original Bond Order in the future, it is in the best 
interest of the Town to amend certain provisions of the Original Bond Order by this First 
Supplemental Bond Order pursuant to Section 10.02 of the Original Bond Order; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has determined that this First Supplemental Bond Order will only 
be effective with respect to the Bonds issued after the adoption of this First Supplemental Bond 
Order. 

Page 194 of 235



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the Governing Body of the Issuer as 
follows: 

Section 1.01.  Section 1.02 of the Bond Order is hereby amended by amending the 
definition of “Bond Order” and by adding a new definition thereto which shall read as follows: 

“Bond Order” means this Bond Order, as amended by the First Supplemental 
Bond Order adopted on June 1, 2015, together with all orders amendatory hereof 
and all orders supplemental hereto as herein permitted. 

“Unrestricted Net Position of the System” means the Electric System Unrestricted 
Net Position, as shown in the Issuer’s comprehensive annual financial report in 
the Statement of Net Position (Unrestricted) - Proprietary Funds (Electric Fund). 

Section 1.02.  Section 5.02(a) of the Bond Order is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 

5.02 Rate Covenant.  (a) The Issuer covenants to fix, charge and collect 
rates, fees, rentals and charges for the use of and for services furnished or to be 
furnished by the System, and that from time to time and as often as it shall 
appear necessary, it shall revise such rates, fees, rentals and charges as may be 
necessary or appropriate, in order that for each Fiscal Year, the sum of (i) Net 
Revenues (calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles) for such Fiscal Year and (ii) 20% of the Unrestricted Net Position of 
the System as of the last day of the preceding Fiscal Year, will be not less than 
120% of the Debt Service Requirement for such Fiscal Year. 

Section 1.03.  Section 3.02 of the Bond Order is hereby amended by replacing Section (f) 
and (g) thereof with the following: 

(f) a certificate, signed by an Issuer Representative, stating that the 
sum of (i) Net Revenues for each of the two complete Fiscal Years next 
preceding the issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds and (ii) 20% of the 
Unrestricted Net Position of the System as of the last day of the corresponding 
two complete Fiscal Years next preceding the issuance of the proposed 
Additional Bonds were equal to at least 120% of the Debt Service Requirement 
on all Bonds then outstanding during each such Fiscal Years; and 

(g) a statement, signed by an Issuer Representative, to the effect that 
the sum of the (i) estimated Net Revenues for each of the two complete Fiscal 
Years next following the date of issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds and 
(ii) 20% of the estimated Unrestricted Net Position of the System as of the last 
day of each of the corresponding two complete Fiscal Years next following the 
date of issuance of the proposed Additional Bonds will be at least 120% of the 
Debt Service Requirements on all outstanding Bonds and the proposed 
Additional Bonds for each such Fiscal Year. 

Page 195 of 235



Section 1.04.  Headings, Etc.  Any headings preceding the texts hereof and any table of 
contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of 
reference and shall not constitute a part of this Bond Order, nor shall they affect its meaning, 
construction or effect. 

Section 1.05.  Inconsistent Matters.  All orders and resolutions and parts thereof, which 
are in conflict or inconsistent with any provisions of this Bond Order are hereby repealed and 
declared to be inapplicable to the provisions of this Bond Order. 

Section 1.06.  Effective Date.  Except as set forth below, this First Supplemental Bond 
Order shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. The modifications to Sections 1.02 and 
5.02 of the Bond Order shall be effective only for Bonds issued after the date of this First 
Supplemental Bond Order.  The modfications to Section 3.02 shall not become effective until no 
Bonds are Outstanding under the Bond Order other than Bonds issued after the date of this First 
Supplemental Bond Order. 

 Councilman __________ moved the passage of the foregoing First Supplemental Bond 
Order and Councilman ____________ seconded the motion and the First Supplemental Bond 
Order was passed by the following vote: 
 

Ayes: Councilmen   

Nays: Councilmen   

Not voting: Councilmen   

* * * * * * * 

I, Kimberly Moffett, Clerk for the Town of Clayton, North Carolina, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of so much of the proceedings of the 
Town Council for the Town at a regular meeting duly called and held June 1, 2015, as it relates 
in any way to the bond order hereinabove referenced and that such proceedings are recorded in 
Minute Book _____ of the minutes of the Council.  Pursuant to G.S. § 143-318.12, a current 
copy of a schedule of regular meetings of the Town Council for the Town is on file in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and the common seal of the Town, this _______ day of June, 2015. 

___________________________________ 
Kimberly Moffett, Clerk 
Town of Clayton, North Carolina 

(SEAL) 

73465.000007 EMF_US 55629027v1 Page 196 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7c Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Resolution – Issuance of Electric System Revenue Bond 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. Robert McKie, Finance Director, will be present to provide 
additional information regarding resolution. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 Approval of Resolutions Resolution 

Page 197 of 235



Resolution #2015-25 

SERIES RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A 
$650,000 ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2015 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton, North Carolina (the “Issuer”) has determined that the 
issuance of the bonds herein authorized to finance the cost to provide service to new customers, 
including extension of electric distribution lines and the required infrastructure (the “Project”) 
will benefit and be in the best interests of the Issuer; and 

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2008, the Governing Body (the “Governing Body”) of the Issuer 
adopted a bond order (the “Original Bond Order”) entitled: 

BOND ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ELECTRIC 
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO CONSTRUCT 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL REVENUE BONDS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS; 
PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL FUNDS; 
PLEDGING TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND THE 
INTEREST ON THE REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES CERTAIN 
REVENUES OF THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM; SETTING FORTH THE 
RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS; AND SETTING FORTH THE 
DETAILS OF CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS; and 

WHEREAS, the Bond Order authorizes the issuance of Additional Bonds (as defined in 
the Original Bond Order) in accordance with Section 3.02 thereof in order to finance System 
Improvements (as defined in the Original Bond Order); and 

WHEREAS, on the date hereof, the Governing Body of the Issuer adopted a First 
Supplement to Bond Order amending certain provisions of the Original Bond Order (such 
Original Bond Order, as amended and supplemented by the First Supplement to Bond Order, 
referred to herein as the “Bond Order”); and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Issuer proposes issuing Additional Bonds in 
order to finance the Project, which constitutes System Improvements;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Issuer: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01.  Meaning of Words and Terms.  Unless otherwise required by the context, 
capitalized words and terms used herein which are defined in the Bond Order shall have the 
meanings assigned to them therein, and the following capitalized words and terms shall have the 
following meanings: 

Page 198 of 235



“Bond Order” means the Bond Order adopted by the Governing Body on June 16, 2008,  
together with the First Supplement to Bond Order adopted by the Governing Body on June 1, 
2015, and all orders amendatory hereof and all orders supplemental hereto as herein permitted. 

“Bond Registrar” means the Finance Officer of the Issuer, as designated by Section 2.01. 

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday or a Sunday and is a day that the Bond 
Registrar is open for the conducting of business. 

“Closing” means the delivery of and payment for the Series 2015 Bond. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the Closing. 

“Interest Payment Date” means each June 1 and December 1, beginning December 1, 
2015. 

“Project Fund” means the fund created and so designated by Section 4.02. 

“Purchaser” means Carter Bank & Trust.  

“Rate Adjustment Event” means any determination by the Internal Revenue Service, any 
federal administrative agency or any court (a) that the Issuer has taken an action, or failed to take 
an action, with the result that the interest on the Series 2014 Bond is includable in gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, or (b) that the Series 2014 Bond is not a 
“qualified tax-exempt obligation” within the meaning of Section 265 of the Code as a result of (i) 
any action the Issuer takes, or fails to take, or (ii) any representation made by the Issuer being a 
misrepresentation. 

“Regular Record Date” means the Business Day next preceding any Interest Payment 
Date. 

“Series 2015 Bond” means the $650,000 Town of Clayton, North Carolina, Electric 
System Revenue Bond, Series 2015 issued pursuant to the Bond Order and this Series 
Resolution. 

Section 1.02.  Rules of Construction.  Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed 
and construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.  Unless the 
context shall otherwise indicate, words used herein shall include the plural as well as the singular 
number.  References herein to particular articles or sections are references to articles or sections 
of this Series Resolution unless some other reference is indicated. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION, FORM, ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF THE SERIES 2015 BOND 

Section 2.01.  Authorization and Issuance of Series 2015 Bond.  The Issuer hereby 
authorizes the issuance of the Series 2015 Bond designated “Town of Clayton, North Carolina 
Electric System Revenue Bond, Series 2015” in the aggregate principal amount of $650,000 for 
the purpose of providing funds, together with any other available funds, to (a) pay the costs of 
the Project and (b) pay the other costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of 

Page 199 of 235



the Series 2015 Bond.  The Series 2015 Bond shall be issued under and pursuant to the 
Constitution and the laws of the State, including the Act, the Bond Order and this Series 
Resolution, subject to the conditions set forth herein and therein.  The Series 2015 Bond 
constitutes Additional Bonds under the  Bond Order. 

The Finance Officer of the Issuer is hereby appointed as Bond Registrar for the Series 
2015 Bond pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Order and this Series Resolution. 

Section 2.02.  Form of Series 2015 Bond.  The definitive Series 2015 Bond shall be 
initially issued as one fully registered bond without coupons numbered R-1 in the aggregate 
principal amount of $650,000, and shall be initially registered in the name of the Purchaser.  The 
definitive Series 2015 Bond shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are 
permitted or required by the Bond Order or this Series Resolution.  Notwithstanding anything in 
the Bond Order to the contrary, the Series 2015 Bond may be transferred in the manner specified 
in the Bond Order, but may not be exchanged for any denomination other than the outstanding 
principal amount thereof. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Bond Order or this Series Resolution to the 
contrary, the Bond Registrar shall not register the transfer of the Series 2015 Bond to any person 
other than a bank, insurance company or similar financial institution unless such transfer has 
been previously approved by the Commission.  The provisions of this paragraph may not be 
amended without the prior written consent of the Commission. 

Section 2.03.  Details of Series 2015 Bond.  The Series 2015 Bond shall be dated the 
Closing Date, shall bear interest at a rate of 1.50% per annum (computed on the basis of a 360-
day year consisting of twelve 30-day months), except as provided below, with interest being 
payable semi-annually in arrears on each Interest Payment Date, and principal payable annually, 
with all unpaid principal and accrued interest due and payable on June 1, 2020 (the “Maturity 
Date”)  (subject to the right of prior redemption), all as set forth in the form of the Series 2015 
Bond included in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.   

From and after a Rate Adjustment Event, the annualized interest rate used to calculate the 
interest on the Series 2015 Bond shall change to such rate as the then current Holder of the Series 
2015 Bond may reasonably determine shall be appropriate to provide such Holder with the same 
tax equivalent yield as it enjoyed prior to the Rate Adjustment Event; provided, however, that 
such Holder shall provide to the Issuer a description of the methodology used to determine such 
tax equivalent yield.  Upon each Rate Adjustment Event, the schedule for payment of principal 
interest on the Series 2015 Bond shall be adjusted from and after the date of such Rate 
Adjustment Event to reflect level annual debt service payments for the remaining term of the 
Series 2015 Bond based on the new interest rate to be borne by the Series 2015 Bond.  The Issuer 
shall additionally pay to such Holder or to any prior Holder any taxes, interest, penalties or other 
charges assessed against or payable by such Holder or prior Holder and attributable to a Rate 
Adjustment Event, notwithstanding the repayment of the entire principal amount of the Series 
2015 Bond or any transfer or assignment of the Series 2015 Bond. 

Page 200 of 235



Both principal of and interest on the Series 2015 Bond shall be paid by wire transfer of 
immediately available funds or by check mailed to the Holder thereof in the manner specified by 
the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond to the Issuer. 

Section 2.04.  Terms and Condition for Issuance of Series 2015 Bond.  The Series 2015 
Bond shall be executed substantially in the form and in the manner herein and in the Bond Order 
set forth and shall be deposited with the Bond Registrar for authentication, but before the Series 
2015 Bond shall be authenticated and delivered to the State Treasurer for redelivery to the 
Purchaser, there shall be filed with the Bond Registrar and the Purchaser, in addition to the items 
required to be delivered pursuant to Section 2.08 of the Bond Order, the following: 

(a) a certified copy of the First Supplement to Bond Order;  

(b) an opinion of bond counsel to the Issuer to the effect that the Series 2015 Bond 
has been validly issued in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Order and this Series 
Resolution in form and substance satisfactory to the Purchaser; 

(c) an opinion of the counsel to the Issuer in form and substance satisfactory to the 
Purchaser and bond counsel to the Issuer; and 

(d) such other documentation or opinions as may reasonably be requested by the 
Bond Registrar, the Purchaser or bond counsel. 

When the documents mentioned in Section 2.08 of the Bond Order and subsections (a) to 
(c), inclusive, of this Section shall have been filed with the Bond Registrar and the Purchaser, 
and when the Series 2015 Bond shall have been executed and authenticated as required by the 
Bond Order and this Series Resolution, the Series 2015 Bond shall be delivered to or upon the 
order of the State Treasurer for redelivery to or upon the order of the Purchaser, but only upon 
the deposit with the Bond Registrar of the purchase price of the Series 2015 Bond. 

Simultaneously with the Closing and the deposit of the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bond 
with the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall cause the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bond in 
the amount of $650,000 (representing the par amount of Series 2015 Bond) to be deposited to the 
credit of the Project Fund. 

ARTICLE III 
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2015 BOND 

Section 3.01.  Redemption of Series 2015 Bond.   

(a) The principal installment of the Series 2015 Bond shall not be subject to 
redemption prior to its maturity or payment dates except as provided in this Article and in Article 
IV of the Bond Order. 

(b) The principal installments of the Series 2015 Bond are subject to redemption prior 
to their stated payment dates, at the option of the Issuer, from any moneys that may be available 
for such purpose, in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 

Page 201 of 235



principal amount of the Series 2015 Bond to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date, without premium or penalty. 

(c) In connection with any partial redemption of the principal installments of the 
Series 2015 Bonds in accordance with this Section, such redemption shall be applied in inverse 
order of the maturing principal installments unless otherwise agreed to by the Holder in writing, 
and the schedule for payment of principal and interest on the Series 2015 Bond shall be modified 
accordingly from and after the redemption date to reflect such partial redemption. 

Section 3.02.  Redemption Notice.  At least ten (10) days but not more than sixty (60) 
days prior to the redemption date of any principal amount of the Series 2015 Bond to be 
redeemed, the Bond Registrar shall cause a notice of any such redemption signed by the Bond 
Registrar to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond.  A 
copy of such notice shall also be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Commission; 
provided, however, that failure to give such notice to the Commission or any defect therein shall 
not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption. 

Each such notice shall set forth the designation and date of the Series 2015 Bond, the date 
fixed for redemption, the principal installments and amounts of the Series 2015 Bond to be 
redeemed, the Redemption Price to be paid, the address and phone number of the Bond Registrar 
and the date of the redemption notice. 

Any notice of redemption may state that the redemption to be effected is conditioned 
upon the receipt by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date of moneys sufficient to 
pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the principal installments of the Series 
2015 Bond to be redeemed and that if such moneys are not so received such notice shall be of no 
force or effect and such principal installments of the Series 2015 Bond shall not be required to be 
redeemed.  In the event that such notice contains such a condition and moneys sufficient to pay 
the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such principal installments of the Series 
2015 Bond to be redeemed are not received by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption 
date, the redemption shall not be made, and the Bond Registrar shall within a reasonable time 
thereafter give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such 
moneys were not so received. 

ARTICLE IV 
ACCOUNTS, REVENUES AND FUNDS; OTHER COVENANTS 

Section 4.01.  Payment of Series 2015 Bonds.  The Issuer shall, subject to the provisions 
of Section 5.04 of the Bond Order, cause the Net Revenues deposited in the Revenue Fund to be 
used to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2015 Bond on each 
Interest Payment Date or any redemption date for the Series 2015 Bond. 

Section 4.02.  Establishment of Project Fund; Disbursement of Money in Project Fund.   

(a) The Issuer hereby establishes the “Town of Clayton, North Carolina Series 2015 
Project Fund” (the “Project Fund”) on its books.  The Project Fund shall be established with and 
held by the Issuer pursuant to this Series Resolution.  Money deposited in the Project Fund in 
accordance with Section 204 shall be applied to pay the costs of the Project and the costs and 

Page 202 of 235



expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2015 Bond.  If the moneys held 
in the Project Fund and any other moneys provided by the Issuer are insufficient to pay all of the 
costs of the Project and costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 
2015 Bond, the Issuer shall provide any balance of the funds needed to complete the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of the Project.  Any moneys remaining in the Project Fund after 
completion of the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, as evidenced by a 
written certificate of completion executed by an Issuer Representative and delivered to the 
Purchaser stating that the Project has been completed and there are no mechanic’s or other liens 
against the Project for labor or materials furnished in connection with the Project, may be applied 
on the next Interest Payment Date to repayments of interest and principal installments of the 
Series 2015 Bond until such time as such moneys are expended. 

Section 4.03.  Investment of Money.  Money held for the credit of the Project Fund 
established hereunder shall be continuously invested and reinvested by the Issuer in Qualified 
Investments to the extent practicable.  Any such Qualified Investments shall mature not later 
than the dates when the money held for the credit of the Project Fund will be required for the 
purposes intended.  The Issuer shall sell or reduce to cash in a commercially reasonable manner a 
sufficient amount of such Qualified Investments whenever it is necessary to do so in order to 
provide money to make any payment from the Project Fund. 

Section 4.04.  Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Net Revenues.  
The Issuer covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on the Series 2015 
Bond issued under the provisions of this Series Resolution at the place, on the dates and in the 
manner provided herein and in the Series 2015 Bond, and any premium required for the 
retirement of the Series 2015 Bond in whole or in part by purchase or redemption, according to 
the true intent and meaning thereof.  The Issuer further covenants that it will faithfully perform at 
all times all of its covenants, undertakings and agreements contained in this Series Resolution 
and the Bond Order, or in any Series 2015 Bond executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder 
or in any proceedings of the Issuer pertaining thereto.  The Issuer represents and covenants that it 
is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State, particularly the Act, to issue the 
Series 2015 Bond authorized hereby and to pledge the Net Revenues in the manner and to the 
extent herein and in the Bond Order set forth; that all action on its part for the issuance of the 
Series 2015 Bond has been duly and effectively taken; and that such Series 2015 Bond in the 
hands of the Holders thereof is and will be a valid and binding special obligation of the Issuer 
payable according to its terms.  The Series 2015 Bond shall be secured pari passu as to the 
pledge of Net Revenues and shall be entitled to the same benefit and security under the Bond 
Order as all other Bonds issued or incurred thereunder and then outstanding. 

ARTICLE V 
 OTHER COVENANTS 

Section 5.01.  Tax Covenants.  The Issuer covenants to do and perform all acts and things 
permitted by law in order to assure that interest paid on the Series 2015 Bond which was 
excludable from the gross income of its Holders for federal income taxes on the date of its 
issuance shall continue to be so excludable. 

Page 203 of 235



 The Issuer hereby represents that it reasonably expects that the Issuer, all entities issuing 
obligations on behalf of the Issuer and all subordinate entities of the Issuer will not issue in the 
aggregate more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (not counting private-activity bonds 
except for qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined by the Code) during the calendar year that the 
Series 2015 Bond is being issued.  The Issuer hereby designates the Series 2015 Bond as a 
“qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
THE TRUSTEE 

Section 6.01.  Designation of Trustee.  The Issuer may at any time, with the approval of 
the Commission, appoint a Trustee to administer the provisions of the Bond Order and this Series 
Resolution and may adopt such supplements to the Bond Order and this Series Resolution as 
shall be necessary or desirable to effectuate such appointment. 

ARTICLE VII 
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS 

Section 7.01.  Modification Without Consent of Holders.  The Issuer may, from time to 
time and at any time, without the consent of any Holders of the Bonds, execute and deliver such 
resolutions supplemental hereto (which supplemental resolutions shall thereafter form a part 
hereof) as shall be substantially consistent with the terms and provisions of this Series Resolution 
and shall not materially and adversely affect the interest of the Holders: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission, to correct or supplement any 
provision herein that may be inconsistent with any other provision herein, to make any other 
provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under this Series Resolution or to modify, 
alter, amend, add to or rescind, in any particular manner, any of the terms or provisions 
contained in this Series Resolution, as is substantially consistent with the terms and provisions of 
this Series Resolution and does not materially and adversely affect the interest of the Holders ; 

(b) to grant or to confer upon the Holders any additional rights, remedies, powers, 
authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Holders; 

(c) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Issuer in this Series Resolution 
other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed by the Issuer or to surrender any right 
or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Issuer; or 

(d) to permit the qualification of this Series Resolution under any federal statute now 
or hereafter in effect or under any state blue sky laws, and, in connection therewith, if the Issuer 
so determines, to add to this Series Resolution or any supplemental series resolution such other 
terms, conditions and provisions as may be permitted or required by such federal statute or blue 
sky laws. 

At least thirty (30) days prior to the execution and delivery of any supplemental series 
resolution for any of the purposes of this Section, the Bond Registrar shall cause a notice of the 
proposed supplemental series resolution to be mailed first-class, postage prepaid, to the 
Commission and to the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the 

Page 204 of 235



nature of the proposed supplemental series resolution and shall state that copies thereof are on 
file at the principal office of the Bond Registrar for inspection by the Holders of the Series 2015 
Bond.  A failure on the part of the Bond Registrar to mail the notice required by this Section 
shall not affect the validity of such supplemental series resolution. 

Section 7.02.  Modification of Series Resolution With Consent of Holder.  Subject to the 
terms and provisions contained in this Section, and not otherwise, the Holder of the Series 2015 
Bond shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Series Resolution to the 
contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the adoption by the Issuer of such 
supplemental series resolutions as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer for the 
purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the 
terms or provisions contained in this Series Resolution or in any supplemental series resolution.  
Nothing herein contained, however, shall be construed as making necessary the approval by the 
Holder of the Series 2015 Bond of the execution and delivery of any supplemental series 
resolution as authorized in Section 601. 

The Bond Registrar shall, at the expense of the Issuer, such expense to be paid from the 
Revenue Fund or from any other available moneys, cause notice of the proposed supplemental 
series resolution to be mailed, postage prepaid, to the Commission and the Holder of the Series 
2015 Bond as of the date such notice is mailed.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of 
the proposed supplemental series resolution and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the 
principal office of the Bond Registrar for inspection by such Holder. 

Whenever, at any time after the date of the mailing of such notice, the Issuer receives an 
instrument in writing purporting to be executed by the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond, which 
instrument shall refer to the proposed supplemental series resolution described in such notice and 
shall specifically consent to and approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form of the 
copy thereof referred to in such notice, thereupon, but not otherwise, the Issuer may adopt such 
supplemental series resolution in substantially such form, without liability or responsibility to 
such Holder. 

If the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond has consented to and approved the adoption thereof 
as herein provided, to the extent permitted by law, the Holder shall have no right to object to the 
adoption of such supplemental series resolutions, to object to any of the terms and provisions 
contained therein or the operation thereof, to question the propriety of the adoption thereof, or 
enjoin or restrain the Issuer from adopting the same or from taking any action pursuant to the 
provisions thereof. 

Upon the adoption of any supplemental series resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section or Section 601, this Series Resolution shall be and be deemed to be modified and 
amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, duties and obligations under this 
Series Resolution of the Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond shall 
thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced in all respects pursuant to the provisions of this 
Series Resolution, as so modified and amended. 

Section 7.03.  Responsibilities of Issuer Under this Article.  The Issuer shall be entitled to 
exercise its discretion in determining whether or not any proposed supplemental series resolution 
or any term or provision therein contained is desirable, after considering the purposes of such 

Page 205 of 235



instrument, the needs of the Issuer and the rights and interests of the Holder of the Series 2015 
Bond. 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 8.01.  Manner of Giving Notice.  All notices, demands and requests to be given 
to or made hereunder by the Issuer, the Commission or the Bond Registrar shall be given or 
made in writing and shall be deemed to be properly given or made if sent by United States 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

(a) As to the Issuer or Bond Registrar  

Town of Clayton, North Carolina 
Post Office Box 879 
Clayton, North Carolina  27528-0879 
Attention:  Finance Officer 

(b) As to the Local Government Commission  

North Carolina Local Government Commission 
325 N. Salisbury Street 
Raleigh, North Carolina  27603-1385 
Attention:  Secretary 

(c) As to the Purchaser  

Carter Bank & Trust  
P.O. Box 1776 
Martinsville, Virginia  24115 
Attention: John J. Engel, III, Sr. Vice President 

Any such notice, demand or request may also be transmitted to the appropriate above-
mentioned party by telegram or telephone and shall be deemed to be properly given or made at 
the time of such transmission if, and only if, such transmission of notice shall be confirmed in 
writing and sent as specified above. 

Any of such addresses may be changed at any time upon written notice of such change 
sent by United States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the other parties by the 
party effecting the change. 

Section 8.02.  Substitute Mailing.  If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension 
of postal service, the Issuer, the Commission or the Bond Registrar shall be unable to mail any 
notice required to be given by the provisions of this Series Resolution, such party shall give 
notice in such other manner as in the judgment of such party shall most effectively approximate 
mailing, and the giving of notice in such manner shall for all purposes of this Series Resolution 
be deemed to be in compliance with the requirement for the mailing thereof. 

Page 206 of 235



Section 8.03.  Issuer, Bond Registrar and Holder Alone Have Rights Under Series 
Resolution.  Except as herein otherwise expressly provided, including, without limitation, 
nothing in this Series Resolution, express or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer 
upon any person, firm or corporation, other than the Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Holder of 
the Series 2015 Bond, any right, remedy or claim, legal or equitable, under or by reason of this 
Series Resolution or any provision being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive 
benefit of the Issuer, the Bond Registrar and the Holder of the Series 2015 Bond. 

Section 8.04.  Application to the Commission.  The Local Government Commission of 
North Carolina is hereby requested to sell the Series 2015 Bond at private sale and without 
advertisement pursuant to G.S.159-123 to the Purchaser. 

Section 8.05.  Effect of Partial Invalidity.  In case any one or more of the provisions of 
this Series Resolution or the Series 2015 Bond shall for any reason be held to be illegal or 
invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions of this Series Resolution 
or the Series 2015 Bond, but this Series Resolution and the Series 2015 Bond shall be construed 
and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been contained therein.  In case any 
covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in this Series Resolution or the Series 
2015 Bond shall for any reason be held to be in violation of law, then such covenant, stipulation, 
obligation or agreement shall be deemed to be the covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement 
of the Issuer to the full extent permitted by law. 

Section 8.06.  Effect of Covenants; Governing Law.  All covenants, stipulations, 
obligations and agreements of the Issuer contained in this Series Resolution shall be deemed to 
be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Issuer to the full extent permitted 
by the Constitution and laws of the State.  This Series Resolution is executed and delivered with 
the intent that the laws of the State shall govern this construction. 

Section 8.07.  Headings.  Any heading preceding the text of the several articles hereof, 
any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Series Resolution, nor shall they 
affect its meaning, construction or effect. 

Section 8.08.  Further Authority.  The officers, attorneys, employees and other agents of 
the Issuer are hereby authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Series 
Resolution for the full, punctual and complete performance of all of the terms, covenants and 
agreements contained in the Series 2015 Bond and this Series Resolution.   

The Mayor, the Town Manager, the Finance Officer and the Clerk, or any of them 
or their deputies, are further authorized and directed (without limitation except as 
expressly provided herein) to take such action and to execute and deliver such 
documents, certificates, agreements or other instruments as they, with the advice of 
counsel, may deem necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions contemplated by 
the Order and this Series Resolution.  In Mayor, the Town Manager, the Finance Officer 
and the Clerk are authorized and directed to make such modifications to the form of the 
Bond and the provisions of this Series Resolution as may be required by the Purchaser; 

Page 207 of 235



provided that the interest rate shall not exceed 1.50%, the term shall be not later than 
2020, and the amount of the Bond shall be not later than $650,000. 

Section 8.09.  Payment Due on Holidays.  If the date for making any payment or the last 
day for performance of any act or the exercising of any right as provided in this Series 
Resolution is not a Business Day, such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised 
on the next Business Day with the same force and effect as if done on the date provided in this 
Series Resolution. 

Section 8.10.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Series Resolution may be executed in 
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original, and such 
counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Section 8.11.  Series Resolution Effective.  This Series Resolution shall take effect upon 
its adoption. 

Councilman __________ moved the passage of the foregoing resolution and Councilman 
____________ seconded the motion and the resolution was passed by the following vote: 

Ayes: Councilmen   

Nays: Councilmen   

Not voting: Councilmen   

* * * * * * * 

 

 I, Kimberly Moffett, Clerk for the Town of Clayton, North Carolina, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of so much of the 
proceedings of the Town Council for the Town at a regular meeting duly called and held June 1, 
2015, as it relates in any way to the resolution hereinabove referenced and that such proceedings 
are recorded in Minute Book _____ of the minutes of the Council.  Pursuant to G.S. § 143-
318.12, a current copy of a schedule of regular meetings of the Town Council for the Town is on 
file in my office. 

WITNESS my hand and the common seal of the Town, this ____ day of June, 2015. 

 
___________________________________ 
Kimberly Moffett, Clerk 
Town of Clayton, North Carolina 

 

(SEAL) 
 

Page 208 of 235



EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF SERIES 2015 BOND 

R-1 $650,000 

United States of America 
State of North Carolina 

TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2015 

The Town of Clayton, North Carolina (the “Issuer”), a municipal corporation in existence 
under the laws of the State of North Carolina, for value received, hereby promises to pay, but 
solely from the sources and in the manner hereinafter provided, to Carter Bank & Trust, or 
registered assigns or legal representative, the principal sum of SIX HUNDRED FIFTY 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($650,000) in annual installments of principal on the days and in the 
years and amount set forth in Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof, and to pay, but 
solely from such sources, interest from the date hereof on the unpaid portion of such principal 
sum until payment thereof (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months) at the rate of 1.50% per annum (subject to adjustment as provided below), such interest 
being payable semiannually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year, beginning 
December 1, 2015, as set forth in Schedule A attached hereto (each such date being an “Interest 
Payment Date”). 

Payment of the final installment of principal shall be made only upon the presentation 
and surrender hereof at the principal office of the Finance Officer of the Issuer (the “Bond 
Registrar”).  The interest so payable and punctually paid or duly provided for on any Interest 
Payment Date will be paid to the person in whose name this bond is registered at the close of 
business on the Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the Business Day next 
preceding such Interest Payment Date.  Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided 
for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner on such Regular Record Date, and 
may be paid to the person in whose name this bond is registered at the close of business on a 
special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Bond Registrar, 
notice whereof being given to the registered owners not less than ten (10) days prior to such 
special record date, or may be paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with 
the requirements of any securities exchange on which the Bonds (hereinafter mentioned) may be 
listed and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, or as more fully provided in 
the Bond Order (hereinafter defined).  All such payments shall be made in such coin or currency 
of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for payment of public 
and private debts.  Both principal of and interest on the Series 2015 Bond shall be paid by wire 
transfer of immediately available funds or by check mailed to the Holder thereof in the manner 
specified by the Holder of this bond. 

Page 209 of 235



From and after a Rate Adjustment Event, the annualized interest rate used to calculate the 
interest on this bond shall change to such rate as the then current Holder of this bond may 
reasonably determine shall be appropriate to provide such Holder with the same tax equivalent 
yield as it enjoyed prior to the Rate Adjustment Event; provided that such Holder shall provide to 
the Issuer a description of the methodology used to determine such tax equivalent yield.  Upon 
each Rate Adjustment Event, the schedule for payment of principal interest on this bond shall be 
adjusted from and after the date of such Rate Adjustment Event to reflect level annual debt 
service payments for the remaining term of this bond based on the new interest rate to be borne 
by this bond.  The Issuer shall additionally pay to such Holder or to any prior Holder of this bond 
any taxes, interest, penalties or other charges assessed against or payable by such Holder or prior 
Holder and attributable to a Rate Adjustment Event, notwithstanding the repayment of the entire 
principal amount of the Series 2015 Bond or any transfer or assignment of this bond. 

This bond is a duly authorized revenue bond of the Issuer designated “Town of Clayton, 
North Carolina Electric System Revenue Bond, Series 2015” issued under and pursuant to the 
Constitution and laws of the State of North Carolina, including the Act, an order of the Issuer 
adopted on June 16, 2008 (the “Bond Order”), and a Series Resolution adopted on May 18, 2015 
(the “Series Resolution”), authorizing the issuance of this bond.  This bond is being issued for 
the purpose of providing funds, together with any other available funds, to (a) pay the costs of 
acquiring, constructing and equipping the Project (as defined in the Bond Order and the Series 
Resolution) and (b) pay the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of this 
bond.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given such 
terms in the Bond Order and the Series Resolution. 

The Bond Order provides for the issuance or incurrence from time to time under the 
conditions, limitations and restrictions set forth therein of additional bonds, notes or other 
evidences of indebtedness secured pari passu as to the pledge of Net Revenues with this bond 
and any additional bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued or incurred pursuant to 
the Bond Order. 

This bond is a special obligation of the Issuer secured by a pledge, charge and lien upon 
Net Revenues on a pari passu basis with any Outstanding Bonds issued or incurred pursuant to 
the Bond Order.  The Issuer is not obligated to pay the principal of or the interest on this bond 
except as provided in the Bond Order from Net Revenues or certain other monies made available 
therefor under the Bond Order, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State 
of North Carolina or any political subdivision thereof or the Issuer is pledged to the payment of 
the principal of and the interest on this bond. 

Reference is made to the Bond Order and the Series Resolution for a more complete 
statement of the provisions thereof and of the rights of the Issuer and the registered owner of this 
bond.  Copies of the Bond Order and the Series Resolution are available for inspection by the 
registered owner of this bond at all reasonable times at the principal office of the Bond Registrar.  
By the purchase and acceptance of this bond, the registered owner hereof signifies assent to all of 
the provisions of the Bond Order and the Series Resolution. 

Page 210 of 235



The Bond Registrar shall keep at its principal office books for the registration of transfer 
of this bond.  The transfer of this bond may be registered only upon such books and as otherwise 
provided in the Bond Order upon the surrender hereof to the Bond Registrar together with an 
assignment duly executed by the registered owner hereof or his attorney or legal representative in 
such form as shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon any such registration of transfer, 
the Bond Registrar shall deliver in exchange for this bond a new bond registered in the name of 
the transferee in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this bond, 
containing the same principal installments and bearing interest at the same rate.  This bond may 
not be exchanged for any denomination other than the outstanding principal amount thereof. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Bond Order or the Series Resolution to the 
contrary, the Bond Registrar shall not register the transfer of this bond to any person other than a 
bank, insurance company or similar financial institution unless such transfer has been previously 
approved by the Commission. 

The principal installments of this bond are subject to redemption prior to their stated 
payment dates, at the option of the Issuer, from any moneys that may be available for such 
purpose, in whole or in part (in whole multiples of $5,000) on any date at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount hereof to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date, without penalty or premium. 

In connection with any partial redemption of the principal installments of this bond, such 
prepayment shall be applied in inverse order of the maturing principal installments unless 
otherwise agreed to by the Holder in writing, and the schedule for payment of principal interest 
on this bond shall be modified from and after the redemption date to reflect such partial 
redemption. 

At least ten (10) days but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date of 
any principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bond Registrar shall cause a notice of 
any such redemption signed by the Bond Registrar to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to 
the registered owner of this bond. 

Any notice of redemption may state that the redemption to be effected is conditioned 
upon the receipt by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date of moneys sufficient to 
pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the principal installments of this bond to 
be redeemed and that if such moneys are not so received such notice shall be of no force or effect 
and such principal installments shall not be required to be redeemed.  In the event that such 
notice contains such a condition and moneys sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if 
any, and interest on such principal installments of this bond to be redeemed are not received by 
the Bond Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, the redemption shall not be made, and the 
Bond Registrar shall within a reasonable time thereafter give notice, in the manner in which the 
notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so received. 

On the date designated for redemption, notice having been given as aforesaid, the portion 
of the principal installment of this bond so called for redemption shall become due and payable 
at the redemption price provided for redemption of such principal installments on such date plus 
accrued interest to such date. 

Page 211 of 235



The registered owner of this bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the 
Bond Order or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with 
respect to any event of default under the Bond Order, or to institute, appear in or defend any suit 
or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Bond Order. 

Modifications or alterations of the Bond Order and the Series Resolution or in any 
supplement series resolution thereto may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances 
permitted by the Bond Order and the Series Resolution, as the case may be. 

This bond, notwithstanding the provisions for registration of transfer stated herein and 
contained in the Bond Order and the Series Resolution, at all times shall be, and shall be 
understood to be, an investment security within the meaning of and for all the purposes of Article 
8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of North Carolina.  This bond is issued with the intent that 
the laws of the State of North Carolina shall govern its construction. 

All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to 
and in the issuance of this bond and the execution and delivery of the Bond Order and the Series 
Resolution have happened, exist and have been performed as so required. 

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
benefit or security under the Bond Order or the Series Resolution until it shall have been 
authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed 
hereon. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Clayton, North Carolina, by order duly passed 
by its Governing Body, has caused this bond to be manually signed by the Town Manager and 
the Town Clerk and its official seal to be impressed hereon, all as of the ___ day of June, 2015. 

 

  
Town Manager 

[SEAL] 

  
Town Clerk 

Page 212 of 235



CERTIFICATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION 

The issuance of the within bond has been approved under the provisions of The State and 
Local Government Revenue Bond Act. 

  
Secretary, Local Government Commission 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This bond is a bond of the series designated therein and issued under the provisions of the 
within mentioned Bond Order and Series Resolution. 

 

By:  
Bond Registrar 

Date of authentication:  __________________ 

Page 213 of 235



ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto  
             
              

PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 
OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF ASSIGNEE 

             
             
              
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS OF TRANSFEREE 
              
the within bond and all right thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints   
      , attorney, to transfer the within bond on the books 
kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:     

In the presence of: 

______________________________________  _____________________________________ 
NOTICE:  Signature must be guaranteed by an 
institution which is a participant in the 
Securities Transfer Agent Medallion Program 
(STAMP) or similar program. 

 The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name as it appears upon 
the face of the within bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

 

Page 214 of 235



SCHEDULE A 

Payment Date 
Principal 
Amount Interest  Total Payment  

BALANCE 

06/01/2015 Initial funding 650,000.00 
12/01/2015 0.00 4,468.75 4,468.75 650,000.00 
06/01/2016 130,000.00 4,875.00 134,875.00 520,000.00 
12/01/2016 0.00 3,900.00 3,900.00 520,000.00 
06/01/2017 130,000.00 3,900.00 133,900.00 390,000.00 
12/01/2017 0.00 2,925.00 2,925.00 390,000.00 
06/01/2018 130,000.00 2,925.00 132,925.00 260,000.00 
12/01/2018 0.00 1,950.00 1,950.00 260,000.00 
06/01/2019 130,000.00 1,950.00 131,950.00 130,000.00 
12/01/2019 0.00 975.00 975.00 130,000.00 
06/01/2020 130,000.00 975.00 130,975.00 0.00 
TOTALS 650,000.00 28,843.75 678,843.75  

 
 

73465.000007 EMF_US 55583779v3 Page 215 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7d Meeting Date:  June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Voluntary Annexation – 14-100-01-ANX – East Village Office – 
Contiguous, 0.09 acres 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. David DeYoung, Planning Director, will present 
information regarding the above request for voluntary 
contiguous annexation. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Place on June 1, 2015 Application  
Consent Agenda  Annexation Map 

Resolution authorizing 
Clerk to investigate  
sufficiency of  
application. 

6-1-15 Set Public Hearing for Application 
June 15, 2015 Annexation Map 

Resolution setting 
Public Hearing. 

Page 216 of 235



Page 217 of 235



Page 218 of 235



Page 219 of 235



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): East Village Investments LLC
Property Owner(s): East Village Investments LLC
Parcel Number(s) Portion of 05H03008L
File Number(s): 14-100-01-Anx

Legend

!

!

!

!

Clayton Town Limits

Clayton ETJ

Parcels

Area to be Annexed

April 20, 2015

1 inch = 100 feet

OLD NC 42 HWY E

NC 42
 HWY E

WALDEN WAY

E FRONT ST

R-10 Zoning

R-8 Zoning

Area to be Annexed
0.09 Acres

O-I Zoning

PD-R Zoning

R-E Zoning

B-3 Zoning

R-E Zoning

WA
LD

EN
 W

AY
OLD NC 42 HWY E

I-2 Zoning

Page 220 of 235



Page 221 of 235



Resolution #2015-26 

ANNEXATION PETITION 14-100-01-ANX 
East Village Investments LLC 
Portion of Parcel 05H03008L 
Owner:  East Village Investments LLC 
Contiguous; 0.09 acres 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON QUESTION 

OF ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G. S.160A-31 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the contiguous area described 
herein has been received; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the petition; and 

WHEREAS, certification by the Town Clerk as to the sufficiency of the petition 
has been made; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton, North Carolina that: 

Section 1.  A public hearing on the question of annexation of the contiguous area 
described herein will be held at Town Hall at 6:30 PM on Monday, June 15, 2015. 

Section 2.  The area proposed for annexation is described as the following:  
Lying and being in Clayton Township, Johnston County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at an existing iron rebar located on the northern right-of-way line of 
NC Highway 42 E and also being the southwestern property corner of lands now 
or formerly owned by Greenway Walden Homeowners Association as shown on 
Plat Book 17, Page 105, Johnston County Registry; thence along and with said 
northern right-of-way S 71°55'26" W a distance of 38.27 feet to an existing iron 
pipe; thence as said highway transitions into the northern right-of-way line of 
Front Street N 81°16'28" W a distance of 53.00 feet to a point; thence leaving 
said right-of-way N 43°28'55" E a distance of 106.40 feet to a point on said 
western property line; thence along and with said western property line S 
11°58'01" E a distance of 75.00 feet to the point of beginning, containing 0.0859 
acres. 

Page 222 of 235



Section 3.  Notice of the public hearing shall be published once in the Clayton 
News-Star, a newspaper having general circulation in the Town of Clayton, at 
least ten days prior to the date of the public hearing. 

Duly adopted this 1st day of June 2015 while in regular session. 

_______________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC  
Town Clerk 

Page 223 of 235



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7e Meeting Date: June 1, 2015 

TITLE: Petition for Annexation 15-08-06-ANX – Ravens Ridge 8C-2 – Non- 
Contiguous 8.20 +/- Acres 

DESCRIPTION: Consideration of Resolution instructing Town Clerk to 
Investigate the sufficiency of submitted petition of 
annexation. 

RELATED GOAL: Legislative 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date:  Action: Info. Provided: 

6-1-15 Place on June 15 2015 Application 
Consent Agenda  Resolution   

Page 224 of 235



Page 225 of 235



Page 226 of 235



Page 227 of 235



Page 228 of 235



Page 229 of 235



!
!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): FSC IV LLC
Property Owner(s): FSC IV LLC
Parcel Number(s) 16I03028G
File Number(s): 15-08-06 ANX RWAC Raven's Ridge
8C-2 House Tract

Legend

!

!

!

!

Clayton Town Limits

Area to be Annexed

Parcels

May 27, 2015

1 inch = 200 feet

W WEBBER LN E WEBBER LN

R-E Zoning

R-E Zoning

R-8 Zoning

R-8 Zoning

R-10 Zoning

R-10 Zoning

HARDAWAY PT

SLOAN DR

Area to be Annexed
8.20 Acres

Page 230 of 235



Page 231 of 235



Page 232 of 235



Page 233 of 235



Page 234 of 235



Resolution #2015-27 
ANNEXATION PETITION 15-08-06-ANX 
RWAC-Raven’s Ridge 8C-2 
Parcel 16I03028G 
Owner:  FSC IV, LLC 
Non-Contiguous; 8.20 acres 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 

A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-58.1 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said 
petition was received on May 26, 2015 by the Town of Clayton; and 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-58.2 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall 
be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation 
proceedings may take place; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Clayton deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton that: 

The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town 
Council the results of her investigation. 

Duly adopted this 1st day of June, 2015, while in regular session. 

____________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod, 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 235 of 235


	Agenda Cover Page
	June 1 2015 AGENDA
	3a COVER Draft May 4 2015 Minutes
	3a May 4, 2015 Minutes

	3b COVER Draft May 18 2015Minutes
	3b May 18 2015 minutes_CA
	Debt Service Support Contract
	Power Sales Agreement
	Power Sales Termination Agreement

	3c COVER Annexation 14-100-01 East Village Investments
	3c Certificate of Sufficiency 14-100-01-ANX
	3c ANX 14-100-01 Documents


	3d COVER Bid Award 2014 Clayton Streets Project 
	3d TOC - 2014 Streets Project Revised Quantities Bid Fom
	3d 2015-22  Resolution 2015

	3e COVER Grill Fest
	3e GrillFest Event Report

	3f COVER Sole Source Purchase
	3f  Sole Source Wastewater Treatment Plant Proposal (1)
	3f Wastewater Treatment Sole Source Letter
	3f Sole Source Resolution


	3g COVER Warranty and Dedication Acceptances
	3g Warranty and Dedication Acceptance

	4aCOVER  Introduction
	5a COVER 15-16 FY Budget Public Notice
	5b COVERMagnolia Pointe
	5b Rezoning 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Staff Report and Documents
	5b MOTION FORM- Magnolia Pointe
	5b Ordinance Magnolia Pointe Rezoning

	5c COVER Text Amendment
	5c Text AmendmentModification to Article 2 Documents
	5c MOTION FORM Text Amendment
	5c Ordinance Text Amendment

	6a COVER Downtown Parking
	7a COVER Resolution Land and Water - Copy
	7a LWCF Resolution 
	7b COVER Supplemental Bond Order Amendments - Copy
	7b Clayton - 2015 Electric System Bonds - 1st Supplement to Bond Order_55629027_1-c

	7c COVER Electric System Revenue Bonds - Copy
	7c Clayton - 2015 Electric System - Series Resolution (Final)_55583779_3-c - Copy

	7d COVER Annexation 14-100-01 East Village Investments
	7d ANX 14-100-01 Documents
	7d ResolutionFixingDateofPH14-100-01ANXLegal Description

	7e COVER ANX Raven's Ridge
	7e 15-08-06-ANX Petition/Application
	7e Mavis House Tract Annexation Boundary 26May15
	7e Deed Legal Description
	7e Annexation Map
	7e ResolutionDirectingClerktoInvestigate,NonCont15-08-06-ANX




